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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Board of Directors,

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP) (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Introduction

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT (“the REIT”/ “the Parent”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Special Purpose Vehicles”) (together referred as the “Mindspace Group”), which comprise the
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2024, the unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter ended June 30, 2024, the unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the quarter ended June 30,
2024, and the unaudited Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of the REIT and each of its special
purpose vehicles for quarter ended June 30, 2024, as an additional disclosure in accordance with
paragraph 4.6 of Chapter 4 to the Security Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated May 15, 2024 (“SEBI Circular") along with summary
of the material accounting policies and select explanatory notes (together hereinafter referred as
the "Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements”).

2. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the
Investment Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager, have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014 as amended from time to time read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated May 15, 2024 (“SEBI REIT Regulations”); Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”); Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations.
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410
‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager’'s personnel responsible for
financial and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued
by ICAI and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of

__all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit

/SHiopinien.

;Rggd'_f'tj'f'hceg: Orl'le International Center, Tower 3, 32nd floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.

' Deloitte Haskin's & Sells LLP is registered with Limited Liability having LLP identification No: AAB-8737
A



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

4. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements include the financial information of the
entities listed in Annexure A to this report.

Conclusion

5. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Condensed Consolidated
Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in accordance with SEBI REIT Regulations,
Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations and has not
disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of the Listing Regulations, including the
manner in which it is to be disclosed or that it contains any material misstatement.

Emphasis of matter

6. We draw attention to Note 40(5)(a) to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
regarding freehold land and building thereon (Paradigm, Malad) held by Avacado Properties and
Trading (India) Private Limited (Special Purpose Vehicle) which is presently under litigation. Pending
the outcome of proceedings and a final closure of the matter, no adjustments have been made in
the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2024. Our
conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

7. We draw attention to Note 19(a) of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which
describes the presentation of “"Unit Capital” as “Equity” to comply with the SEBI REIT Regulations.
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

(.

Il

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Membership No. 49660

Mumbai, July 30, 2024 UDIN: 404966 0BK FRSH1S08
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Annexure “A”

List of entities included in the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
A. Parent entity

i. Mindspace Business Parks REIT

B. Special Purpose Vehicles

i. Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
ii. Horizonview Properties Private Limited

iii. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited

iv. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

v. Sundew Properties Limited

vi. Intime Properties Limited

vii. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

viii. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

74 F



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4
Capital work-in-progress 5
Investment property 6
Investment property under construction 7
Other intangible assets 8
Financial assets
- Investments 9
- Other financial assets 10
Deferred tax assets (net) 11
Non-current tax assets (net) 12
Other non-current assets 13
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories 14
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 15
- Cash and cash equivalents 15A
- Other bank balances 15B
- Other financial assets 16
Other current assets 17
Total current assets
Asset held for sale 50

Total assets before regulatory deferral account

Regulatory deferral account - assets
Total assets

As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

1,138.03 1,129.49

336.45 -
204,723.14 204,036.96
15,395.17 14,567.35
1.42 1.48
38.28 33.04
3,808.98 3,159.79
263.27 300.61
720.70 777.69
1,709.85 1.174.87
228,135.29 225,181.28
47.61 43.52
1,248.37 1.092.30
5,382.81 3,250.36
1,074.85 2,850.48
4,258.62 3,746.78
650.48 588.67
12,662.73 11,572.11
1,462.10 1,464.99
242,260.12 238,218.38
148.35 228.01
242,408.47 238,446.39




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Corpus 18 0.01 0.01
Unit capital 19 162,838.83 162,838.83
Other equity 20 (22,695.68) (21,149.70)
Equity attributable to unit holders of the Mindspace REIT 140,143.16 141,689.14
Non-controlling interest 45 7,692.88 7,596.27
Total equity 147,836.04 149,285.41
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 21 62,676.45 48,836.00

- Lease liabilities 118.60 115.03

- Other financial liabilities 22 3,615.41 3,355.03
Provisions 23 68.83 61.01
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 24 4,041.80 3,732.05
Other non-current liabilities 25 558.88 431.16
Total non-current liabilities 71,079.97 56,530.28
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 26 12,397.33 20,892.11

- Lease liabilities 12.52 12.97

- Trade payables 27

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 74.99 223.72
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,113.54 863.84

- Other financial liabilities 28 8,438.14 9,411.48
Provisions 29 7.04 7.14
Other current liabilities 30 1,248.49 1,184.76
Current tax liabilities (net) 31 200.41 34.68
Total current liabilities 23,492.46 32,630.70
‘T'otal liabilities 94,572.43 89,160.98
Total equity and liabilities 242,408.47 238,446.39
Material accounting policies 3
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated 4-51

Financial Statements

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K
Ralieja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
icting 4s the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

:(ﬁ(*% Jphordse & Lhodecrms,

ahgja Ramesh Nair Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Executive Officer ~ Chief Financial Officer

As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018

i

Nilesh Shah .
Partner Director

Membership number: 49660 DIN: 00029010
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 July 2024 Date : 30 July 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 July 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 July 2024
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of changes in unit holder's equity
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

A. Corpus Amount
Balance as on 1 April 2023 0.01
Changes during the year -
Balance as on 31 March 2024 0.01
Balance as on 1 April 2024 0.01
Changes during the period
Closing balance as on 30 June 2024 0.01
Corpus Amount
Balance as on 1 April 2023 0.01
Changes during the period -
Balance as on 30 June 2023 0.01

B. Unit Capital Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2023 162,838.82
Changes during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 162,838.82
Balance as at 1 April 2024 162,838.82
Changes during the period
Balance as at 30 June 2024 162,838.82
Unit Capital Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023 162,838.82
Changes during the period B
Balance as at 30 June 2023 162,838.82

C. Other equity

Retained Earnings Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023 (15,546.48)
Add: Profit for the year attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 5,250.43
Add: Other comprehensive income/(expense) attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT (0.35)
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023* (2,852.49)
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023* (2,846.49)
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023* (2,841.49)
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2023* (2,846.49)
Less: Transfer to/from debenture redemption reserve** 133.66
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (21,549.70)
Balance as at 1 April 2024 (21,549.70)
Add: Profit for the year attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 1,282.72
Add: Other comprehensive income/(expense) attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT -
Less: Distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2024* (2,828.70)
Less: Transfer to/from debenture redemption reserve** 400.00
Balance as at 30 June 2024 (22,695.68)
Other equity
Retained Earnings Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023 (15,546.33)
Add: Profit for the period attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 1,275.48
Add: Other comprehensive income attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT -
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023* (2,852.42)
Less: Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption Reserve** 134.00
Balance as at 30 June 2023 (16,989.27)




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of changes in unit holder's equity

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Debenture Redemption Reserve** Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2023 534.00
Transfer to retained earnings (299.03)
Transfer from retained earnings 165.03
Balance as at 31 March 2024 400.00
Balance as at 1 April 2024 400.00
Transfer to retained earnings (400.00)
Balance as at 30 June 2024 =
Debenture Redemption Reserve** Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023 534.00
Transfer to retained earnings (165.03)
Transfer from retained earnings 31.03
Balance as at 30 June 2023 400.00

* The distributions made by Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Mindspace REIT under the REIT

Regulations.
** Refer Note 20

Material accounting policies - refer note 3

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 4-51

As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration pumber: 117366 W/W-100018

)j Wa.t,/

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Membership number: 49660

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 July 2024

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja

Corp Investment Managers LLP)

114

-

ahgja Ramesh Nair

Diredtor Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00029010
Place: Mumbai

Date : 30 July 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 July 2024

(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

/M'UW{F

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 July 2024
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(Al amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

1

Organisation Structure

The condensed consolidated financial statements (‘Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements’) comprise financial statements of Mindspace Business Parks Real
Estate Investment Trust (‘Mindspace Business Parks REIT/ Mindspace REIT/Trust), its SPVs Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited (MBPPL'), Gigaplex Estate
Private Limited (‘Gigaplex'), Sundew Properties Limited ("Sundew") Intime Properties Limited (‘Intime'), K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited ('KRIT"), KRC
Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited (KRC Infra'), Horizonview Properties Private Limited (‘Horizonview"), Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private
Limited (‘Avacado') (individually referred to as ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’ or ‘SPV’ or "Asset SPV" and together referred to as ‘Mindspace Business Parks
Group’/"Mindspace Group'). The SPVs are companies domiciled in India.

Anbee Constructions LLP (‘ACL’) and Cape Trading LLP (‘CTL’) collectively known as (the ‘Sponsors’ or the ‘Co-Sponsors’) have set up the 'Mindspace Business
Parks REIT" as an irrevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with Securities and
Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') as a Real Estate Investment Trust on 18th November 2019 under Regulation 6 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 having registration number RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003. The Trustee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the
“Trustee’) and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers
LLP) (the ‘Investment Manager’).

The objectives and principal activity of Mindspace REIT is to carry on the activity of a real estate investment trust, as permissible under the REIT Regulations, to raise
funds through the REIT, to make Investments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and the Investment Strategy and to carry on the activities as may be required for
operating the REIT, including incidental and ancillary malters thereto.

The units of the trust were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) on 7 August 2020.
The brief activities and shareholding pattermn of the SPVs are provided below:

Shareholding Sharcholding

Name of the SPV Activities (in percentage) as at 30 June 24 (in percentage) as at 31 March 2024

The SPV is engaged in real estate|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects such as Special|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

Economic Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli
(Navi Mumbai), Pune and Pocharam
(Hyderabad). The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park. It commenced
distribution of electricity in its project at
Airoli, Navi Mumbai from 9 April 2015

MBPPL

The SPV is engaged in real estate|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects such as Special|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

Economic Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli
(Navi Mumbai).The SPV is a deemed
Gigaplex distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park. It commenced
distribution of electricity in its project at
Airoli, Navi Mumbai from 19 April
2016.

The SPV is engaged in development and|Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%
leasing/licensing of Information
Technology (IT) park, SEZ to different|Telangana State Industrial| Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation
customers in Hyderabad. Infrastructure Corporation Limited|Limited (11%)

(11%)

Sundew

The SPV is engaged in development and|Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%
leasing/licensing of IT park to different
Intime customers in Hyderabad. Telangana State Industrial| Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation
Infrastructure Corporation Limited|Limited (11%)

(11%)

The SPV is engaged in development and |Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%
KRIT leasing/licensing of IT park to different
customers in Hyderabad.

Telangana State Industrial| Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation
Infrastructure Corporation Limited|Limited (11%)

(11%)




The SPV is engaged in real estate|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects such as Special{REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

Economic Zone (SEZ) and Information
Technology Parks. The SPV has its
project in Kharadi Pune.The SPV is a
deemed distribution licensee pursuant to
which it can distribute power to the SEZ
tenants within the Park. It commenced
distribution of electricity in its project at
Kharadi, Pune from 1 June 2019.

The SPV is also engaged in Facility
Management services.

KRC Infra

The SPV is engaged in development and|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
leasing/licensing of IT park to different|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%
customers in Chennai.

Horizonview

The SPV has developed an Industrial|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
park for the purpose of letting out to|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

different customers in Paradigm building|
at Malad-Mumbai and is being
maintained and operated by the SPV. The
SPV also has a commercial project in
Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai.

Avacado

Basis of preparation

The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements ('Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements') of Mindspace Business Parks REIT comprise the
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2024, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter ended June 30, 2024, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the
quarter ended June 30, 2024, the Statement of Net Distributable Cashflows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT and each of the SPVs for the quarter ended June 30,
2024, and a summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory information and other additional financial disclosures

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 (“the REIT regulations"); Regulation 52 and Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 ("Listing Regulations"); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting™, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with
REIT regulations (refer note 19 on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation).
The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on July
30, 2024.

Statement of compliance to Ind AS:

These Condensed Consolidated financial statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
34 “Interim Financial Reporting”,as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) to the extent not inconsistent
with the REIT regulations as more fully described above and Note 19 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.The accounting policies adopted and methods
of computation followed are consistent with those of the previous financial year.The financial statements of all the SPVs and the Trust used for the purpose of
consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date.

Basis of Consolidation

Mindspace Business Parks Group consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements
of Mindspace Business parks REIT and its subsidiary SPVs as disclosed in note 1. Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing
rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity’s returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences
until the date control ceases

The procedure for preparing Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks Group are stated below:

a) The financial statements of Mindspace Business Parks Group are consolidated for like items and intragroup balances and transactions for assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows between entities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are eliminated in full upon consolidation.

b) Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited, which is a shareholder in Intime, KRIT and Sundew has not agreed to exchange their equity interest in
the SPVs (Intime, KRIT and Sundew), thus, Mindspace Business Parks REIT has recorded a non-controlling interests for these SPVs. The interest of non-controlling
shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the
amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

c) The figures in the notes to accounts and disclosures have been Consolidated line by line and Inter-company transactions and balances including unrealised profits are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

d) Mindspace Business Parks Group holds 4% of the equity share capital of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, a company invoived in the real estate development.
Mindspace Business Parks Group is of the view that it is not able to exercise significant influence over Stargaze Properties Private Limited and hence it has not been
accounted using equity method.




3.1

Material accounting policics

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is Mindspace Business Parks Group’s functional currency and the currency of
the primary economic environment in which Mindspace Business Parks Group operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded off to
nearest million except otherwise stated.

(b) Basis of measurement

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are on the historical cost basis, except for the following:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument): measured at fair values;

- Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability less present value of defined obligations: Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit plan.

(c) Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most material effect on the amounts recognised in the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements is included in the following notes:

Presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead of compound instrument (Note 19)

Estimation of lease term for revenue recognition

Estimation of useful life of property, plant and equipment and investment property

Estimation of recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used and income taxes.

Impairment and Fair valuation of Investment Property, Investment property under construction and Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disclosure of contingent liabilities

Significant judgements is involved in the allocation cost of acquisition to the identifiable assets and liabilities based on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition
in case of asset acquistion.

d) Current versus non-current classification

Mindspace Business Parks Group presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification:
An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Mindspace Business Parks Group has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(e) Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace
REIT takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

Mindspace Business Parks Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
Mindspace Business Parks Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Mindspace Group regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values then the
Management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in
the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

« Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement date.

« Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

« Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in
its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Financial guarantce contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are measured initially at the fair value and in accordance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case to case basis elected to be accounted for
financial guarantee as Insurance Contracts as specified under Ind AS 104.




3.2

3.3

(@)

(0

(c

~

(d)

(e

(a)

(b)

(©

(O]

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged when the assets are ready for their
intended use. The cost of property, plant and equipment includes freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition or construction of the
respective assets. The cost of such assets not ready for their intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Purchase price or construction cost is defined as any
consideration paid or fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to Mindspace Business Parks

Group. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management aver the balance useful life. The
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, are listed in the table
below. Depreciation on addition / deletion of property, plant and equipment made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition /
deletion.

The assets and estimated useful life are as under:

Asset group Estimated Useful Life
(in years)
Power assets Other assets

Right to use - Leasehold lani Balance Lease term -
Buildings* 75/90 -
Plant and machinery 15 15
Electrical installation* 15 15
Computers 3 3
Temporary Structure® - 1
Office equipment* 4 4
Fumniture and fixtures* - 7
Vehicles* - 5

* For these class of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is appropriate which is different than those prescribed
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

(1) Based on internal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those
respective assets at SPV,

(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition.

(3) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation
accounted for on a prospective basis.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment under construction is disclosed as capital work in progress which is carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses. Cost comprises
of purchase price and any attributable cost such as duties, freight, borrowing costs, erection and commissioning expenses incurred in bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use.

Advance paid and expenditure incurred on acquisition / construction of property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet
date are disclosed under other non current assets as advances on capital account and capital work-in-progress respectively.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are initially
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried at cost less impairment, if any.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line method over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, from the date that they are available for use.

Estimated Useful Life
Asset group N
(in years)
Other assets
Computer Softwares 3
Trademarks 10

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

De-recognition
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal, gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference buwwn e et djsposal proceeds and the ¢ unt of the asset, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is derecngmu.eci/ /, x \\
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Investment property

Rccognition and measurement

Properties including land, building and other assets, which are held either for long-term rental yield or for capital appreciation or for both, and which are not occupied
substantially by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified as investment property.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost, including related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in
accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model i.e, Cost less depreciation less impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged when the
investment property is ready for its intended use. Cost comprises of direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project
management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurance,
design and technical assistance, and construction overheads are allocated on a reasonable basis to the cost of the project.

Plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures, office equipment and electrical equipments which are physically attached to the commercial buildings are considered as part
of investment property.

In case ancillary services are provided to the occupants of the property, such property is treated as investment property if the services are insignificant to the arrangement
as a whole.

Acquisitions and disposals are accounted for at the date of completion of acquisitions and disposals.

If significant parts of an item of Investment property have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of Investment

property.

Subscquent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Depreciation ‘

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management over the balance useful life. The
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 and listed in the table
below. Depreciation on addition / deletion of investment property made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition / deletion.

Estimated Useful Life

Asset group )
(in vears)

Right to use - Leasehold lanc Balance Lease term
Buildings* 75/90
Infrastructure and developmi 15
Roadwork* 15
Broadwalk, vantage café etc 50
Plant and machinery 15
Office equipment* 4
Furniture and fixtures* 7
Electrical installation* 15

* For these class of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is appropriate which is different than those prescribed
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013,

(1) Based on interna! assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those
respective assets at SPV.

(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition.

(3) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation
accounted for on a prospective basis.

(4) Usefut life of building is restricted to the lease term of leasehold land on which the building is constructed.

Fair Value

Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued. The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the Statement of Net assets at Fair
Value.

De-recognition

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is de-recognised.

In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of Investment properties, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a
significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if any)

Investment properties under construction

Property that is being constructed for future use as investment property is accounted for as investment property under construction until assets are ready for their
intended use.

Direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the
site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurance, design and technical assistance, and construction overheads are taken as the cost
of the project.

Investment properties under construction represent the cost incurred in respect of areas under construction of the real estate development projects less impairment losses,
if any.

Advance paid for acquisition of investment property which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed under other non current assets as
capital advance.




3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

(a

=

(b)

—_
)
~

()

(b)

(c

-

(d)

Impairment of assets

Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses at each balance sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
Mindspace Business Parks Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable that of the cash generating
unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated
future cash flows (discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset)
expected to arise from the continuing use of the assets and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are treated as direct cost and are considered as part of cost of
such assets. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. A qualifying
asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

Capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the general borrowings.

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the amortised cost of the financial liability. In calculating interest expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost of the liability.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in which active development is interrupted. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing cost incurred by the SPVs on inter-company loans is continued to be capitalised only to the extent Mindspace Group has incurred external borrowing cost.

Inventories

Measurement of inventory

Inventories comprise of building material and compenents. Contractual work in progress, in respect of third party customers, is classified as work in progress.
Mindspace Business Parks Group measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories

The cost of inventories of building material and components and work in progress comprise all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

Net realisable value
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Facility rentals

Revenue from property leased out under an operating lease is recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis, except where there is an uncertainty of ultimate
collection.

Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income. The lease term is the non-cancellable period together with any further term for
which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease, the Mindspace Business Parks Group is reasonably certain that the tenant will
exercise that option. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed on a receipt basis.

Revenue from works contractual services

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when a performance obligation is satisfied by transfer of promised goods or services to a customer in accordance
with the agreement with the customer. For works contract arrangement, the performance obligation gets satisfied over time, and therefore, the revenue recognition is
done by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation from time to time as per the agreement with the customer. The progress is
measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. The revenue is recognised to the
extent of transaction price allocated to the performance obligation satisfied. Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party

Maintenance services
Maintenance income is recognised over a period of time for services rendered to the customers.

Revenue from power supply

Revenue from power supply is accounted for on the basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting year.
Mindspace Business Parks Group determines surplus/deficit i.e. excess/ shortfall of aggregate gain over return on equity entitlement for the period in respect of its
operations based on the principles laid down under the respective Tariff Regulations as notified by Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC), on the
basis of the tariff order issued by it.In respect of such surplus/deficit, appropriate adjustments as stipulated under the regulations are made during the period. Further,
any adjustments that may arise on annual performance review by the MERC under the tariff regulations is made after the completion of such review.

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Company as part of the contract. Revenue
from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group performs its obligations to its customers and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the
consideration is probable. The timing of such recognition in case of sale of goods is when the control over the same is transferred to the customer.
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Finance Lease

For assets let out under finance lease, Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Rentals received
are accounted for as repayment of principal and finance income. Minimum lease payments receivable on finance leases are apportioned between the finance income and
the reduction of the outstanding receivable. The finance income allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining net investment in the finance lease.

Contingent rents are recorded as income in the periods in which they are eamed.

Sale of surplus construction material and scrap
Revenue from sale of surplus construction material and scrap is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods net of the expected removal cost.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income :

(i) Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT group has right to receive payment is established.

(ii) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.

(ili) Delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments are recognised, on time proportion basis, except when there is uncertainty of ultimate collection.

Tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in equity and other comprehensive
income respectively.

(a) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by end of reporting period

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the
liability on a net basis or simultaneously

(b) Deferred tax

(©

Deferred tax asset/liability is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Financial Statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which Mindspace Business Parks Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction; and

- Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements to the extent that Mindspace Business Park Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not

reverse in the foreseeable future;

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Mindspace
Business Parks Group recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be realised simultaneously.

For operations carried out under tax holiday period (80IA benefits of Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax assets or liabilities, if any, have been established for the tax
consequences of those temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends.

In the situations where one or more units of the Group are entitled to a tax holiday under the tax law, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of
temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concerned unit's gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday
period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate.
However, the Group restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified
period. In the year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement under deferred tax assets. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlement is written down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period
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Earnings per unit (EPU):

The basic earnings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to the unit holders of Mindspace REIT by the weighted average number of units
outstanding during the reporting period. The number of units used in computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per unit comprises the weighted average units considered for
deriving basic earnings/ (loss) per unit and also the weighted average number of units which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential units,

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing diluted earnings per
unit, only potential equity units that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units are included,

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when Mindspace Business Parks Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that Mindspace
Business Parks Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration net of recoveries if any, required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources. When
there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it, are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present
obligation as a result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted.

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace Business Parks Group.,

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates,
Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the period

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the period-end and not covered by forward contracts, are translated at the
period-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-
monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Leases

As a Lessor

Mindspace Business Parks Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its investment properties.

Leases for which Mindspace Business Parks Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases

When Mindspace Business Parks Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease is classified as
a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease and presented as unbilled revenue in other financial assets.
The lease term is the non-cancellable period together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease,
the Mindspace Group is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option.

Initial direct costs such as brokerage expenses incurred specifically to earn revenues from an operating lease are capitalised to the carrying amount of leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment in the leases. Finance
lease income is allocated to reporting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases

As a Lessee

Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases ( defined as leases with a lease term of 12
months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the
lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

- fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

« variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;

« the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented separately as part of Financial Liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated balance sheet.The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

Mindspace Business Parks Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever

« the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

« the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in
which case a revised discount rate is used).

- a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate,
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The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial
direct costs . They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever Mindspace Business Parks Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under Ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset

Mindspace Business Parks Group applies Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in Note 3.5.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the right-of-use asset, The related payments are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line “ other expenses™ in the
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when Mindspace Business Parks Group becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial
instruments. All financial assets/ financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, plus in case of financial assets/ financial liabilities not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets/ financial liabilities are added to or deducted, as the
case may be, from the fair value of such assets or liabilities. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are
measured at transaction price.

Financial assets:
Classification of financial assets:

Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification is done depending upon Mindspace Business Parks Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

(iii) For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.

(iv) Mindspace Business Parks Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(b)
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Subsequent Measurement

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on Mindspace Business Parks Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. There are three measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its debt instruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and
by selling financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity instruments:

Mindspace Business Parks Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. There are two measurement categories into which Mindspace Business
Parks Group classifies its equity instruments:

Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL:

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless Mindspace Business Parks Group irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI:

On initial recognition, Mindspace Business Parks Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in
fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserve for ‘equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments, but is transferred to retained earnings
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Mindspace Business Parks Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease
receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset. For trade receivables, Mindspace Business Parks Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables,
Mindspace Business Parks Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision
matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-Jlooking information.

Derecognition of financial assets:

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

(i) the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or

(ii) Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and

Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

Mindspace Business Parks Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assét, but has transferred control of the asset.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity instruments at FVOCI), the differences between the carrying amounts measured at
the date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is
created or retained by the SPV is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of Mindspace Business Parks Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instrument is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments.

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments is an equity
instrument. '

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount
is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible instrument using the effective interest method

Financial Liabilities
Recognition, measurement and classification

Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised cost. Management determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclassification.

Mindspace Business Parks Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments. Subsequent
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortized cost. All changes
in fair value of financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss . Amortised cost category is applicable to loans
and borrowings, trade and other payables. Afier initial recognition the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate method.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are recognized in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Embedded derivatives .
Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated, Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Statement of Cash flow

Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are
segregated.

For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, Initial direct costs such as brokerage expenses incurred specifically to eamn revenues from an
operating lease which are capitalised to the carrying amount of leased assets are considered as cashflows used in investing activity.

For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of Mindspace Business Parks Group’s cash management

As per para 8 of Ind AS 7 “where bank overdrafis which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdraft, in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, is included as ‘borrowings’ under Financial Liabilities.

Employee benefits plan

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS — 19 ‘Employee benefits’

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, etc. and are
recognised in the period in which the employee rendered the related services. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period

Long term employec benefits

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when
services are rendered by the employees. Mindspace Business Parks Group's provident fund contribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a government
administered fund and charged as an expense. The above benefits are classified as defined contribution schemes as Mindspace Business Parks Group has no further
defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Defined Dbenefit plan

Mindspace Business Parks Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the gratuity liability based on
internal calculation based on the number of years completed and last drawn basic salary as mentioned in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The liability or asset
recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the
fair value of plan assets, if any. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries / SPVs using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other long term employee benefits - Compensated absences

Benefits under compensated absences are accounted as other long-term employee benefits. Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the liability for
compensated absences based on internal calculation which is determined on the basis of leave credited to employee’s account and the last drawn salary. Mindspace
Business Parks Group's net obligation in respect of compensated absences is the amount of benefit to be settled in future, that employees have eamned in return for their
service in the current and previous years. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation / by
SPVs using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are
recognised as a liability.

Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax

Mindspace Business Parks Group has elected to present earnings before interest, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax
as a separate line item on the face of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Mindspace Business Parks Group measures earnings before interest,
depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations.

Subsequent events

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements are issued. The Consolidated Financial Statements have their own date of authorisation, which differs from that of the financial statements of the entities
which are part of Mindspace REIT group. Therefore, when preparing the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, management considers events up to the date of
authorisation of these financial statements.

Errors and estimates

Mindspace Business Parks Group revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and
reliable information to the users of the Condensed Consolidated financial statement. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively.

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the
period(s) of change.

Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity of the earliest prior period in which the error
is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period presented are also restated.




3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

Segment Information

Primary segment information
The primary reportable segment is business segments

Business segment

The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - 'real estate' and ‘power distribution’, which are determined based on the internal organisation and
management structure of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its returns. The Board of directors of the
manager has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM). CODM evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on
analysis of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed below.

Real estate segment

Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other commercial assets . The
Group has its project/properties in Mumbai Region, Hyderabad, Pune and Chennai for development and management of commercial SEZ, IT parks and commercial
assets including incidental activities.

Power distribution
The state power regulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infra as Deemed Distribution Licensee for Power. The approved
SPVs being Deemed Distributor, supplies power to customers within the notified SEZ.

Secondary segment
Mindspace Business Parks Group's operations are based in India and therefore Mindspace Business Parks Group has only one geographical segment - India.

Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests represent the share of reserves and capital attributable to the shareholders of the SPVs who have not agreed to exchange their shares in the
SPVs for units of Mindspace REIT and will not become the unitholders of Mindspace REIT. Below is the list of shareholders of the SPVs for whom non-controlling
interest has been recognised. Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss, Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Condensed Balance Sheet .

SPV Shareholder % Holding in SPV
(As on reporting daie)
KRIT Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 11.0%
Corporation Limited
Intime Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 11.0%
Corporation Limited
Sundew Telangana State Industrial [nfrastructure 11.0%

Corporation Limited

Ind AS 110 requires entities to attribute the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of Mindspace REIT and to the non-
controlling interests. This requirement needs to be followed even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance

Cash distribution to unit holders

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been created. As per the REIT
Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directos of the Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in other equity.

Distribution Policy

The Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on the cash flows generated from Mindspace REIT’s assets and investments. In terms of the
Distribution Policy of Mindspace REIT and the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed to Mindspace
REIT, in proportion of Mindspace REIT’s shareholding in the Asset SPV, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013. Presently, NDCF to be received
by Mindspace REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from
the Asset SPVs or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as may be permissible under the applicable law. Such SPV Distributions shall be
declared and made for every quarter of a Financial Year in terms of the Distribution Policy. As per revised NDCF the framework, the Manager is required to declare and
distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Mindspace REIT along with its SPVs as distributions (“REIT Distributions™) to the Unitholders.

Non-current assets held for sale and Discontinued Operations:

Discontinued operation is a component of the Company that has been disposed of or classified as held for sale and represents a major line of business or geographies.
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

9 WNon Current Investment

Particulars

As at
30 June 2024

As at
31 March 2024

Financial assets
Investments in equity instruments
Unquoted equity shares measured at FVTOCI

2,000 equity shares of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up (31 0.02 0.02
March 2024 : 2,000)
Financial assets
Unquoted investment in Government Securities at amortised cost
7.61% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2024: 25,000) 2.64 2.64
8.24% GOI 2027 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2024: 25,000) 2.66 2.66
7.17% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2024: 25,000) 243 2.43
7.26% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2024: 22,000) 2.32 2.32
7.06% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2024: 22,000) 2.32 232
6.67% GOI 2050 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 8,000 units (31 March 2024: 8,000) 0.81 0.81
7.72% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 10,000 units (31 March 2024: 10,000) 0.96 0.96
6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 11,300 units , (31 March 2024: 11,300) 1.06 1.06
7.26% GOI 2029 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 18,000 units (31 March 2024: 18,000) 1.90 1.90
7.40% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 28,700 units (31 March 2024: 28,700) 3.07 3.07
8.33% GOI 2036 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 21,210 units (31 March 2024: 21,210) 2.50 2.50
7.06% GOI 2046 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 12,000 units (31 March 2024: 12,000) 1.27 1.27
8.33% GOI 2036 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 1,790 units (31 March 2024: 1,790) 0.21 0.21
6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 28,000 units (31 March 2024: 28,000) 2.62 2.62
6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 17,700 units (31 March 2024: 17,700) 1.66 1.66
7.36% GS 2052; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 1,200 units (31 March 2024: 1,200) 0.12 0.12
6.99% GS 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 10,400 units (31 March 2024: 10,400) 1.03 1.03
6.99% GS 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 1,037 units (31 March 2024: 1,037) 0.11 0.11
6.99% GOI 2051; Bond (Fave Value Rs 100), 24,700 units (31 March 2024: 24,700) 1.85 1.85
7.18% GOI 2033; FV:2,412,300 (24,123 bonds FV Rs.100) (31 March 2024: Nil) 2.47 -
7.18% GOI 2033 : FV 14,57,800 ( 14578 bonds FV Rs. 100) (31 March 2024: Nil) 1.49 -
7.18% GOI 2033: FV: 1,246,900 (12,469 bonds FV Rs.100) (31 March 2024: Nil) 1.28 =
6.99% GOI 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 14,900 units (31 March 2024: 14,900) 1.48 1.48
38.28 33.04
Investments measured at cost (gross) - -
Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss & =
Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 0.02 0.02
Investments measured at amortised cost 38.26 33.02
Aggregate amount of impairment recognised s -
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof = -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 38.28 33.04




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

10

12

13

14

15

Other financial assets (Non current)

Particulars As at As at
30 Junc 2024 31 March 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Fixed deposits with banks* 893.03 144.93
Unbilled revenue 901.86 881.87
Interest receivable 0.67 0.59
Finance lease receivable 1,505.20 1,627.15
Security deposits for others 31.19
Security deposits 472.80 497.93
Other receivables 4.23 7.32
3,808.98 3,159.79
* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 294.15 million (31 March 2024 — 144,93 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs.
11 Deferred tax assets (nct)
Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Deferred tax assets (net) 263.27 300.61
263.27 300.61
Non-current Tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Advance Tax (net of provision for tax) 720.70 777.69
720.70 777.69
QOther non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 1,568.09 1,010.74
Balances with government authorities 107.45 107.14
Prepaid expenses 34.31 56.99
1,709.85 1,174.87
Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Building materials and components 47.61 43,52
47.61 43.52
Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
30 Junc 2024 31 March 2024
Unsecured
Considered good 1,248.37 1,092.30
Credit impaired 43.67 42.51
Less: loss allowance (43.67) (42.51)
1,248.37 1,092.30
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15A Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Cash on hand 3.30 3.21
Balances with banks
- in current accounts® 5,378.14 3,194.76
- in escrow accounts 1.37 52.39
5,382.81 3,250.36
*Includes balance with bank of Rs 0.43 million as on 30 June 2024 (31 March 2024: Rs 0.40 million) for unpaid distributions.
15B Other bank balances
Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Fixed deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months and less than twelve
months* 733.54 2,666.10
Balance with banks** 341.31 184.38
1,074.85 2,850.48

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 482.63 million (31 March 2024 — Rs 578.59 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and

earmarked for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

** These amounts includes Rs. 272.27 million, deposited in separate escrow accounts, earmarked for on-going Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

16 Other financial assets (Current)

Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable
- on fixed deposits 16.51 190.54
- from others 9.06 11.89
Interest accrued but not due
- on fixed deposits 4.79 9.67
- from others N 3.19
Security deposits 6.81 210.47
Fixed deposits with banks* 2,629.79 1,435.49
Other deposits 4.40 &
Unbilled revenue 1,092.62 1,434.88
Less: loss allowance for Unbilled revenue (57.23) (57.23)
Finance lease receivable 514.60 503.73
Other receivables** -
- Considered good 37.27 4.15
- Credit impaired 0.73 0.73
Less: loss allowance (0.73) (0.73)
4,258.62 3,746.78

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 383.90 million (31 March 2024 — Rs. 325.15 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and

earmarked for Debenture Redemption Reserve.
** Refer Note 46 for related party disclosure.

17 Other current asscts

Particulars

As at
30 June 2024

As at
31 March 2024

Unsecured, considered good

Advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 197.60 323.01
Loan to staff 0.24 -
Balances with government authorities 155.40 165.59
Prepaid expenses 292.48 99.19
Other receivables 4.76 0.88

650.48 588.67
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18 Corpus
Corpus Amount
As at 1 April 2023 0.01
Changes during the year -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 0.01
As at 1 April 2024 0.01
Changes during the period -
Closing balance as at 30 Junc 2024 0.01

19 Unit Capital

A. Unit Capital No. Amount
As at 1 April 2023 593,018,182.00 162,838.83
Changes during the year - -

Closing balance as at 31 Marech 2024 593,018,182.00 162,838.83
As at 1 April 2024 593,018,182.00 162,838.83
Changes during the period - -

Closing balance as at 30 June 2024 593,018,182.00 162,838.83

(a) Terms/rights attached to Units and other disclosures
The Trust has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of Units is entitled to one vote per
unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust on quarterly basis in accordance with REIT
Regulations/ in terms of the Distribution Policy. The Board of directors of Investment Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of Units held by the Unitholders. The Trust declares and pays distributions in Indian Rupees.

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspace Business Parks REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net
distributable cash flows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT on half year basis for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a
contractual obligation of the Mindspace Business Parks REIT to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial
instrument which contains equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance
with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 issued under the REIT Regulations, the Unitholders’ funds have been
presented as “Equity” in order to comply with the requirements of Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI master circular dated 15 May 2024 dealing with the
minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as equity, the distributions
to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity when the distributions are approved by the Board of Directors of
Investment Manager.

(b)  Unitholders holding more than 5 percent Units in the Trust

Name of the unitholder As at 30 June 2024 As at 31 March 2024
No of Units % holding No of Units % holding
Platinum Iflumination A 2018 Trust 54,375,000 9.17% 54,375,000 9.17%
Anbee Constructions LLP 35,404,890 5.97% 35,404,890 5.97%
Cape Trading LLP 35,438,895 5.98% 35,438,895 5.98%
Chandru Lachmandas Raheja* 32,634,433 5.50% 32,634,433 5.50%
Capstan Trading LLP 41,095,719 6.93% 41,095,719 6.93%
Casa Maria Properties LLP 46,820,719 7.90% 46,820,719 7.90%
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP. 41,095,719 6.93% 41,095,719 6.93%
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 42,004,546 7.08% 42,004,546 7.08%
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited 36,596,296 6.17% 36,596,296 6.17%

*Excludes holding in for and on behalf of beneficiaries of Ivory Property Trust

(¢)  The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registration till the
balance sheet date. Further, the Trust had issued an aggregate of 36,363,600 Units for cash at Rs. 275 per unit and 556,654,582 Units at a price of Rs. 275
per unit for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date
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20  Other Equity*

Particulars

As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024

Reserves and Surplus

Retained earnings (22,695.68) (21,549.70)
Debenture redemption reserve - 400.00
(22,695.68) (21,149.70)

*Refer Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's equity for detailed movement in other equity balances.

Retained earnings :
The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings. At the

end of the period, the profit/loss after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the retained earnings account.

Debenture redemption reserve

As per the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (amended), SPV is required to create Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) out of
profits, which is available for payment of dividend, equal to 10% of the amount of debentures issued. Accordingly, the SPV has created DRR out of their
profits in terms of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 (as amended) which would be utilized for redemption of debentures at the
time of its maturity. During the quarter ended June 30, 2024, such debentures were redeemed and hence balance in the reserve has been transferred to

retained earnings.
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21

Note 1

Borrowings (Non-current)

Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024

Secured

Terms loans

- from banks 23,247.72 21,562.93

- from other parties 3,077.32 3,106.27
Flexi term loan 1,066.87 361.91
Debentures
Senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable, 4,977.15 4,975.53

non-convertible debentures (“NCD Series 4”)(net of issue expenses, at amortised

cost) (Refer note 1)

Secured, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable 5,476.48 5,473.41
non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1”) (net of issue

expenses, at amortised cost) (refer Note 2)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 4,980.00 4,977.72
convertible debentures (NCD Series 6) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost)

(refer Note 3)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 4,987.20 4,986.16
convertible debentures (NCD Series 7) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost)

(refer Note 4)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 3,392.68 3,392.07
convertible debentures (NCD Series 8) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost)

(31 March 2024 : NIL) (refer Note 5)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 4,982.32 -
convertible debentures (NCD Series 9) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost)

(31 March 2024 : Rs. Nil) (refer Note 6)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 6,488.71 -
convertible debentures (NCD Series 10) (net of issue expenses, at amortised

cost) (31 March 2024 : Rs. Nil) (refer Note 7)

62,676.45 48.836.00

Non- Convertible Debentures and Bonds

In July 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-
convertible debentures of face value of INR 1,000,000 (Indian Rupees One Million) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR
5,000,000,000/- (Indian Rupees Five Thousand Million Only) with a coupon rate of 7.95% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each
debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and
be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on
the Record Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30 Sept 2022, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 27 July 2027. The
tenure of the said NCD Series 4 is 60 months.

This NCD Series 4 was listed on BSE Limited on July 29, 2022

Security terms

NCD Series 4 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage on carpet area of approximately 779,466 sq ft in building 12 D
(identified units in building) along with the common areas, usage and access rights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Building 12D as mentioned in the
trust deet, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 17414.77 square metres (equivalent to 4.30 acres), forming part of a
portion of land admeasuring 14.02 hectares equivalent to 34.64 acres or thereabout declared as ‘Special Economic Zone’ land from and out of the larger
piece of land bearing Survey no. 64(part), lying, being and situated at Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

c) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 4 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 60 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 27 July, 2027.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.
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Note 2

Note 3

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of
each debenture.

On 15 March 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 55,000 Green Debt Securities in the form of listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable,
transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 17) having nominal value of Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One lakh only)
each, amounting to Rs. 5,500,000,000 (Rupees Five thousand five hundred millions only) with a coupon rate of 8.02% p.a. payable quarterly beginning
from the end of first quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 15 March 2023, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 13 April 2026.
The tenure of the said Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 is 3 year and 30 days from 15 March 2023, being date of allotment. The date of payment of first
coupon is 31 March 2023.

Mindspace REIT Green Bond I was listed on BSE Limited on March 16, 2023.

Sccurity terms

Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD
Holders) as more particularly described in the transaction documents, summarized as follows:

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of equitable mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of
approximately 1.067 million square feet or thereabouts in buildings no. 5B and 9 of Madhapur Hyderabad (approx. 245,977 sq. ft. in building no. 5B and
approx. 821,717 building no. 9) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in (i) the notionally demarcated land admeasuring
approximately 7,169.90 square metres (equivalent to 1.7717 acres) on which Building 5B is situated, and (ii) the notionally demarcated land admeasuring
approximately 16,871.82 square metres (equivalent to 4.17 acres) on which Building 9 is situated.

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be payable to Intime Properties Limited.

c¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Intime Properties Limited.

Redemption terms:

a) Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 years and 30 days from the date of allotment (date of
allotment being 15 March 2023 and date of redemption being 13 April 2026).

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2023) until the scheduled redemption date and on the
scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of
each debenture.

In June 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 50,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures of face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/-
(Rupees Five Thousand Million Only) with a coupon rate of 7.75% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture
shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable
in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record
Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30 June 2023, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 30 June 2026. The tenure of the
said NCD Series 6 is 3 year and 29 days.

This NCD Series 6 was listed on BSE Limited on June 06, 2023.

Security terms

NCD Series 6 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of a registered simple mortgage on identified units in buildings 6, 7 and 8 of Commerzone
Yerwada adding to a cumulative carpet area of approximately 0.7msf across these 3 buildings at Commerzone Yerwada, Pune along with the common
areas, usage and access rights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Buildings 6, 7 and 8 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally
demarcated land admeasuring approximately 26,162 square metres , forming part of a portion of land larger land admeasuring 1,03,919 square metres
(after deducting 21 square metres for road from total extent of 1,03,940 square metres) at Village Yerwada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune and within the
limits of Pune Municipal Corporation.

b) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

c) Corporate guarantee executed by Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 6 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 29 days from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2026

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June 2023) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.
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Note 4

Note 5§

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days” notice to the Issuer
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of
each debenture.

In September 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 50,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-
convertible debentures of face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR
5,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand Million Only) with a coupon rate of 8.03% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of
each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period
and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as
on the Record Date. The first Coupon Payment Date is 30 September 2023, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 10 December
2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series 7 is 3 years and 3 months.

This NCD Series 7 was listed on BSE Limited on September 13, 2023.

Security terms

NCD Series 7 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified units in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 of Mindspace
Madhapur adding to a cumulative carpet area of approximately 0.73 msf across these 3 buildings in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 as mentioned in the trust
deed, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 36,258 square metres, being and situated at Mindspace Madhapur, Madhapur
Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of a hypothecation over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the
credit of or accrued or accruing on, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Properties as further specified in transaction
documents.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by KRIT.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 7 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 3 months from the date of allotment i.e. 10 December 2026.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September 2023) until the scheduled redemption date with last
payment falling on the scheduled redemption date.

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of
each debenture.

In March 2024, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 34,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures of face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 3,400,000,000/-
(Rupees Three Thousand Four Hundred Million Only) with a coupon rate of 7.93% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of
each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated on an actval/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period
and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as
on the Record Date. The first Coupon Payment Date is 31 March 2024, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 20 March 2027.
The tenure of the said NCD Series 8 is 3 years.

This NCD Series 8 was listed on BSE Limited on March 22, 2024,

Security terms

NCD Series 8 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified units in buildings 1, 4, 5 and Amenity building of
Commerzone Yerwada adding to a cumulative leasable area of approximately 0.55 msf and carpet area of ¢.0.43 msf across these 4 buildings in buildings
as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 27,826 square metres, being and situated at Village
Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune and within the limits of Pune Municipal Corporation, and bounded as follows:.

b) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of a simple mortgage over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to
the credit of or accrued or accruing on, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Properties as further specified in transaction
documents.

c¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.
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Note 6

Note 7

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 8 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year from the date of allotment i.e. 20 March 2027.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March 2024) until the scheduled redemption date with last
payment falling on the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of
each debenture.

In May 2024, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 50,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures of face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/-
(Rupees five thousand million Only) with a coupon rate of 7.96% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall
be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in
arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record
Date. The first Coupon Payment Date is 30 June 2024, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.c. 11 May 2029. The tenure of the
said NCD Series 9 is 4 years and 364 days.

This NCD Series 9 was listed on BSE Limited on May 14, 2024.

Security terms

NCD Series 9 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of a simple mortgage on 30,700 square metres of land (referred to as Plot B Land and Plot C
Land) together with the commercial and IT building as further described in the trust deed, situated at 7, Ahmednagar Road, Village Vadgaon Sheri, Taluka
Haveli, District Pune.

b) A charge over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the credit of or accrued or accruing on, receivables, movable assets
pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Properties as further specified in transaction documents.
c¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 9 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 4 years and 362 days from the date of allotment i.e. 13 May 2024,

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 13 May 2024) until the scheduled redemption date with last payment
falling on the scheduled redemption date.

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of
each debenture.

In June 2024, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 65,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures of face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 6,500,000,000/-
(Rupees six thousand five hundred million Only) with a coupon rate of 7.94% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each
debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and
be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on
the Record Date. The first Coupon Payment Date is 30 June 2024, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 24 June 2031. The
tenure of the said NCD Series 10 is 7 years. The debenture issued was sustainability linked debenture with provisions for step down of coupon basis
achievement of targets. The debenture also has a Early Redemption Date as further described in the respective transaction documents.

This NCD Series 10 was listed on BSE Limited on June 26, 2024,

Security terms

NCD Series 10 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified units in buildings 12B and 12C of Mindspace Madhapur
adding to a cumulative carpet area of approximately 0.86 msf carpet area (or leasable area — 1.13 msf) across these 2 buildings as mentioned in the trust
deed, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29,157.16 square metres, being and situated at Mindspace Madhapur,
Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of a hypothecation over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the
credit of or accrued or accruing on, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Properties as further specified in transaction
documents.

c) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew Properties Limited.




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 10 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 7 years from the date of allotment i.e. 25 June 2024.
b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 25 June 2024) until the scheduled redemption date with last payment
falling on the scheduled redemption date.
¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.
d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of
each debenture.
e) The debenture issued was sustainability linked debenture with provisions for step down of coupon basis achievement of identified ESG targets. The
debenture also has an Early Redemption Date on 31 December 2028 as further described in the respective transaction documents.

Refer Note 47 for Ratio disclosure

22  Other non-current financial liabilities

As at As at
Particulars 30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Security deposits 3,477.20 3,233.91
Retention money payable
- due to micro and small enterprises 41.95 36.68
- others 32.86 21.04
Capital creditors
- Due to micro and small enterprises - -
- Others 63.40 63.40
3.615.41 3,355.03
23 Provisions (Non current)
Particulars As at As at

30 June 2024 31 March 2024

Provision for employee benefits

- gratuity 28.05 23.05
- compensated absences 14.14 11.32
Other Provision 26.64 26.64
68.83 61.01
24 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Particulars Asat - As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 4.041.80 3.732.05
4,041.80 3,732.05

25 Other non-current liabilities

Particulars As at As at

30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Unearned rent 558.86 431.14
QOther advance 0.02 0.02

558.88 431.16




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

26 _Short term borrowings
Particulars As at As at
30 Junc 2024 31 March 2024

Secured:
Term loan from banks and financial institution

Loans repayable on demand

- overdraft from banks 2,561.60 1,364.36
Unsecured:

- Commercial Paper (Series -2) (31 March 2024 : 1,446.12) (Note 1) - 1,446.12
-Commercial Paper (Series -3) (31 March 2024 : Rs. Nil) (Note 2) 3,287.13

Current maturities of long-term debt (Secured)

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, - 3,748.84

principal protected — market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
(“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) (net of issue expenses, at
amortised cost) (refer Note 4)

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- - 749.75
convertible debentures (NCD Series 2) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost)
(refer Note 5)
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- 4,990.83 4,986.41
convertible debentures (NCD Series 3) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost)
(refer Note 3)
Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumulative, Taxable, Transferable, - 3,997.56
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (Sundew NCD 1) (refer Note 6)
- from banks 1,410.75 4,475.01
- from other parties 108.89 105.97
- Flexi term loan from other parties 38.13 18.09
12,397.33 20,892.11

Note 1 On 19 December 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 3,000 Commercial Papers (Series -2) with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 (Rupees five lakhs
only) each, at a discount of 8.0% per annum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP/Series-2/2023-24 was Rs.
1,446,117,000 (Rupees one thousand four hundred forty six million one hundred and seventeen thousands only) and the value payable on maturity is Rs.
1,500,000,000 (Rupees one thousand five hundred million only). Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument.
The commercial papers were listed on BSE and will mature on 6 June 2024

Note 2 On 26 April 2024, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 7,000 Commercial Papers (Series -3) with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 (Rupees five lakhs only)
each, at a discount of 7.75% per annum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP Series 3 was Rs. 3,287,126,500
(Rupees three thousand two hundred eighty seven million one hundred and twenty six thousand five hundred only) and the value payable on maturity is Rs.
3,500,000,000 (Rupees three thousand five hundred million only). Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying
instrument. The commercial papers were listed on BSE and will mature on 25 February 2025.

Note 3 In February 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable, non-
convertible debentures (“NCD Series 3”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 5,000,000,000 (Indian Rupees
five thousand millions only) with a coupon rate of 6.35% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and
computed from day to day ,be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the
relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The Issuer
hereby aknowledges and agrees that there shall be no moratorium period for the payment of Coupon.The first Coupon payment Date is 31 March 2022,
with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 31 December 2024. The tenure of the said NCD Series 3 is 35 months from [ February
2022, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 3 was listed on BSE Limited on February 04, 2022.
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RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
Security terms
NCD Series 3 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):
a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the carpet area of approximately 5,52,974 Sq. Ft. ( save and except entire 2nd
floor admeasuring 11,883 Sq. Ft. carpet area in building no. 2) (the building no. 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and
open parking spaces, in Building 2 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to Building 2 and all erections.
The Building 2 is situated on a portion of the Mortgage Land admeasuring 8.04 Hectares, which portion is notified as a Special Economic Zone & first and
exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the identified units with aggregating to carpet area of approximately 4,61,527 Sq. Ft.
(identified units of building no. 3 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 3 together with all
the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to Building 3 and all erections (“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 3 as further
detailed in transaction documents.
a) first ranking pari passu charge by way of a simple mortgage over the Mortgaged Land as further detailed in transaction documents.
b) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Gigaplex with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.
¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Gigaplex.
Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 3 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 35 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 31 December, 2024 and accordingly
the same has been classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 30 June 2024
b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.
c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.
d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of
each debenture.

Note 4 In March 2021, Mindspace REIT issued 3,750 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market
linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only)
each, amounting to Rs. 3,750,000,000 (Rupees three thousand seven hundred fifty million only). The tenure of the said MLD Series 2 is 38 months from
18 March 2021, being date of allotment of the MLD Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i.e. on maturity on 17
May 2024. The coupon payoff structure is linked to condition where the payoff will be fixed on the final fixing date i.e. 16 April 2024. If identified 10 year
G-Sec's last traded price as on final fixing date is greater than 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date i.e. 18 March 2021, the coupon rate will
be 6.65% p.a. If identified 10 year G-Sec’s last traded price as on final fixing date is less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing
date, the coupon rate will be zero percent. As per the valuers report in respect of valuation of these MLD Series 2, the probability of occurrence of such an
event (last traded price of identified 10 year G-Sec on final fixing date being less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price on initial fixing date) is
remote and hence the value of the option considered as zero.

This MLD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

MLD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 13,71,442 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts
in buildings no. 12A and Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad (approx. 12,69,140 sq. ft. in building no.12A and approx. 1,02,302 sq. ft in
building no. 12B) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29,842
sq. mtrs on which the said two building no.12A and 12B, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Madhapur
Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad (“Mortgaged Properties”), for MLD Series 2.

b) First ranking exclusive charge created by way of a hypothecation over the Hypothecated Properties of MLD Series 2.

c) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties of Sundew shall be received, save and except any
common area maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

d) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew.

Redemption terms:

a) MLD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024 and accordingly the same
has been redeemed.

b) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD Series 2 if the
rating is downgraded to A+.
¢) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days notice to the Issuer
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of
each Debenture.




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
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Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
Note 5 In March 2021, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 750 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
(“NCD Series 27) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 750,000,000 (Rupees seven hundred fifty million
only) with a coupon rate of 6.6861% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2021, with
last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 17 May 2024. The tenure of the said NCD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being
date of allotment.
NCD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

NCD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of
approximately 151,460 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in building no. 4 of Commerzone Yerawada together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest
in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 9,561 sq. mtrs on which the said building, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land
that are situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 2.

b) A charge on the escrow account has been created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to MBPPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

c) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024 and accordingly the
same has been redeemed.
b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.
¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.
d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer
require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of
each debenture.

Note 6 In September 2021, Sundew Properties Limited issued 4,000 Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumalative, Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures of (“Sundew NCD 1") having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 4,000,000,000 (Rupees
four thousand million only) with a coupon rate of 6.1% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment (date of
allotment being 28 September 2021 and end of first full quarter being 31 December 2021), with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e.
28 June 2024. The tenure of the said NCD is from deemed date of allotment i.e. 28 September 2021, till scheduled redemption date i.e. 28 June 2024.
Hence, the same was classified as current as on 31 March 2024 and it is paid on 28 June 2024.

This NCD was listed on BSE Limited on 1 October 2021 and delisting is in process.

Security terms:
NCD 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders) (as further detailed in
security documents):

1. First ranking exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage over identified immovable properties (as identified below); First ranking sole
and exclusive security interest by way of hypothecation over

(a) the current & future movable assets owned by the Sundew and receivables pertaining to identified immovable properties Building 20 with 709,165
square feet carpet area (save and except 11,974 square feet carpet arca of cafeteria and 1,520 square feet carpet area of SEZ office), Building 12B (unit no
1301 (22,069 square feet carpet area), unit no 1302 (16,296 square feet carpet area), unit no 1401 (37,050 square feet carpet area) Part Project Mindspace
Madhapur, Hyderabad Buildings

(b) the escrow account and the subscription account and all amounts standing to the credit of, or accrued or accruing on escrow account and the
subscription account.
2. NCD are backed by guarantee provided by Mindspace REIT.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD 1 are redeemable by way of bullet payment on 28 June 2024 and accordingly the same has been redeemed.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 December, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.

c¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Sundew shall issue mandatory redemption notice within 2 business days and no later than than
30 (thirty) Business Days from issuance of mandatory redemption notice (unless instructed otherwise by debenture trustee), redeem in full (or as the case
may be, in part) all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the mandatory redemption amount in respect of each Debenture.
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27

28

29

30

31

Trade payables

Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Trade Payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 74.99 223.72
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises * 1,113.54 863.84
1,188.52 1,087.56
* Refer note 46 for related party disclosure.
Other current financial liabilitics
Particulars As at As at
30 Junc 2024 31 March 2024
Employees dues payable 28.02 10.17
Interest accrued but not due on loans from
- banks / financial institutions 128.95 60.20
- debenture/bonds - 830.38
Interest accrued and due on others 21.16 40.27
Security deposits 5,973.16 5,892.07
Retention dues payable
- due to micro and small enterprises 122.93 145.82
- others 218.60 24591
Unpaid Distributions 0.43 0.40
Capital creditors
- Due to micro and small enterprises 769.25 813.53
- Others 1,124.10 1,341.12
Other liabilities* 51.54 31.61
8,438.14 9,411.48
* Refer note 46 for related party disclosure.
Provisions (Current)
Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Provision for employee benefits
- gratuity 4.23 4.11
- compensated absences 2.81 3.03
7.04 7.14
Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Unearned rent 388.10 333.76
Advances received from customers 22.74 17.04
Statutory dues 266.78 374.99
Other advances 31.26 13.97
Other payable* 539.60 445.00
1,248.49 1.184.76
*This includes Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount.
Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Provision for income-tax, net of advance tax 200.41 34.68
200.41 34.68




68°96C 11°9¢ 68°t6 91'p01 s Yl
S0'8 = s0'C (444 SIaYJ0 -
8C°6C S0'81 8T'11 et SpUnNJal Xej}-owosu] uo -
09°L1 00°L 09°¢ 07’8 sytsodap A31011309]2 UO -
%96°1vC 90°I1 96°9L €T8L spsodap paxij uo -
uwodur 20U
(paupny) (paupneun) (payipneup) (payipneup)
PTOT Y2IBA [ € gcoz eunf o¢ YTOT USIBN [ € pvaozdung o¢
PSpus Ieak ay1 10, Papus Jopenb oy 10, papus 1ayenb oyp 10 g papud a3yienb 3y aoyg XTI BIVRE |
UIOdU] JSAIAU] €€
poriad ur 00] 9y} SULINp PI9p 2SS /JUSJUI JO J2139] JO UOBUILLIA] 0] SJUBUS] WOJ] PIAISDAI uonesuaduos swij SUO SIpNJoul AJuleu I 4
00'T6TvT 98°L68°C £€°001°9 SY'LLT'9
£seel - - - xuonesuadwo)
16'vC1 L8'L 16y 90°'1¢7 deros pue [euolew UOIONISUOD snydins Jo [es
98°LTT 09°¢e 9899 1205 9SEB2[ 20UBUI} WOJJ SWOdU] 1SI9IU]
dwodu 3unesado 4O
Y7559 L9°SLT YTI¢gl < SIDIAIIS JOBIJUOD SHA0M WUI0.I] INUIANY
£0'v9L 9¢°L6l 68881 €T8PT Ajddns aamod wo.ay anudARY
(T vs) (99°67) L) » pios wswidinbg Jo 1507) :$59]
Yovs 99°6C oL - judwdinby jo oug
Y6’ 16€Y TTI101 Y6 EVI°l 8€'STT'L SOOIAIOS OUBUSIUIBI
61°566°L1 YILOE Y 6V 95y PETILY s[eual A1j1oe
SIDIAIIS JO J[eg
(paupny) (paupneup) (panpneun) (paypneupy)
0T YoIBN 1€ £20T 2unf o¢ PTOT Yo\ [ € vzozdung o¢
papus Ieak ay) 10 papus 19)enb oy o, papus Jouenb ay) 104 pPapua a3yaenb ay) a0y
sagnanaeq

suonesado wody INUAAY 7€

(pa3e)s ISIMIAY)O SSA[UN UOI[[IW *SY U SUNOWE [[V)
SHUNOIIY 0} SIPON

SJUAUIAIL)S [BIdUBUI] PIJEPL[OSUO)) PISUIPUO))
€00/0Z-6 I/ LITY/NI:NA

LITA SMAVJ SSANISNI ADVISANIIN



*S9OIAJOS S0UBUSIUTEW S31[198] JO saakojdws 0} s1ajal Ajtofew sasuadxa syjouaq aakojdwy 4

£8°L6C 98'LL §S'L9 65°L8

86701 %'l 66'¢t 677 sosuadxo aseJjom JJeIS
$6'0 6€°0 D 98T soouasqe pajesuaduwo))
660 68°C (60°8) 17's sasuadxa Aniein
€6'L1 oy 96°¥ vy Sspunj Jayjo pue juspiaoid 0} uorNqLIUOD)
86'99¢ 7589 £6'L9 8L'TL safem pue solle[es

(panpny) (penpneun) (paupneun) (panipneun)

PCOT UOBN 1€ £cog [unf o PTOT UYIBN [ € pToT dungf o¢

Papus Jeak oyj 104 papus Joyrenb oy 1o papus Joyrenb oy Jog papu3 aajaenb sy a0y sagfnanaed

£9suadxa syyouaq fojdwy G¢

107081 vL'es 089y €L°0E
10°1¢ €0 006 P91 SWOOUI SNOSUB[[IOSIA
00°vcl 90°CL £9°6C Sl oeq usnLIm paJinbai 193uo] ou sanIqer]
00°6¢ 9L°01 L1'8 9L Tl SjuaUISAAUT JO uondwapal uo uren

(poupny) (paupneup) (paviprieun) (payipneun)

20T YoIBN 1€ £c0c aunf o¢ 20T U € poz dungf o¢

papus 1eak oy} 10] papus Janrenb oy Jo] papus J9lenb sy o, papua aapienb ayy a0y sae[nonIeg

AWl RBYPO  $E

(Paj¥)s ASIAIAY)O SSI[UN UOIJ[IUI *SY Ul SPUNOWE [|Y)
SJUNOJIIY 0} SION]

SHUIWIDIE)S [EIdUBUL PIJBPIJOSUO)) PISUIPUO))
€00/0T-61/LITY/NI:NI

LITY SYUVd SSANISNI ADVASANIIN



£88L0"Y 06°£98 0yTl’l 29'p81°1
6798 Pe'8 SLTY 88'C sosuadxs SNOaUB|[9OSIA]
660 LEO 6¢°0 80°0 (30u) sso] 23ueyoxs U210
(9oueMmO[[e SSO]
086 10°0 1€9 M AA upaIo pajoadxa) s1ga(] [NPQNO(T 10] UOISIA0LJ
98°¢¢1 LOST 98'6v 09°0S areys anNUIATY
06°681 S09v 06°S¥ 88'8Y sosuadxa Aj1qisuodsay [e1o0g s1eiodio)
ev'e 99°0 vl 148V JJO usyLIM SIGSp peg
66 L6°0 Wy 80°¢ sagiey) sjueq
SLS91 'L SL'T9 €0°8¢ asuadxs Suisipsape/sasuadxas uonowold ssaursng
0¢£°29 1L¥T soL SS°LT sodieyo Surdwe)s pue s39) Jui|i]
95°¢¢ 00'1 06'v¢ LLLST PaysIjowa(] /3O UoNLIM SISy
9¢'86 ee'LT LTTC YLt $997 Joddns ssauisng
€TLS * = = anuaAal pa[[Iqu[) IOJ UOISIAOL]
Sv'e = 06°0 60°1 uoeuUO(]
11z 807 169 w©9 SoXe} pue sajey]
STLT 6l'¢ §T91 V8¢ 90UBK9AUOO pUR SUI[[RABI],
10'v€8 L6'LTT 10°€81 €T'867 $08IBYD [9SOIP PUR I91BM ‘AJIOLII09[T
PS6€9°1 SL9TE ¥S°08% 90°€S€ 20ouBUSIULRW PUB SHRdoy]
19°899 96'SS1 19°691 $9'091 xe) Atadorg
LTyl S8 LTt PL'0 Yy
(paupny) (panpneupn) (pavpneun) (panpneun)
FTOT USRI 1€ ggozunf og PTOT USIEN 1€ pz0T dung o
papua J1eak oy 10, papus Japienb ay1 Jo,J popua Joptenb oy 104 papus Japienb ay) doy sag[aneg

sasuadxa Jay)Q 9¢

(pa7®)s ISIAMIAYJO SSI[UN WOI[JIW S Ul SUNOWE [|V)
SHUNOIDY 0} SIAJON

SJUIUIAIE]S [RIDUBUIY PAJEPI[OSUO)) PISUIPUO))
€00/07-61/LITY/NI:NY

LITY SMUVd SSANISN IDVASANIN



¥5'9T8°¢ SL'TE6 SI'0v6 81°696
810 - L00 60°0 $108SE 9]qI3UBIUI JO UOHESILIOWY
157969°¢ SL€06 00906 L8€E6 Kusdoad jusunsaaut Jo uoneroaidsg
§8°6¢l 0067 80°¥€ (443 wswdinbs pue jue(d Kuadoid jo uoneroaids(
(penpny) (pepneun) (penpneup) (paupneun)
$20T USIBN 1€ €20TAUn[ O¢ PTOT YoIBN [ € yToz aung g
popua Ieok oy} 10 popus Iayrenb ayy 10§ papus 1openb oy 1o, papu? Ja3aenb 9y a0y sAgnaIe
uonespIowe pue uonedadoq §¢
TE'995° Y 68°590°1 LUT6I°T 66'797'L
UOTJOILISUOD Jopun
(r0°9€L) (¥8+01) (€205 00°697) Auadoxd yusunisaul o} pasijendes s1s00 eouBUL] 59T
- SL'1 - 901 $a31eYo 20UBUY JOYIQ
¢80y S8'8L $8'96 10°L6 susodap AJ1Ioas uo sasuadxa 3sa19ul Jo Juipurmu)
9¢6 9L0 9¢'9 11°0 SIS0 Uo -
60°¢l Iv'e 60'¢ e Ay[1qer] osea] uo -
9L'L65T v0'TY9 S0'6L9 SY'LI8 SpPUOQ PUEB S2JNjUGIP UO -
0€'6L2°C [4 R34 §0°9¢9 yI'€19 SUONNJIISUI [BIOURBUI] PUB SYUB] WOJJ SSUIMOLIO] UO -
asuadxa Jsa10U]
(panpny) (paupneun) (paupneun) (paypneun)
Y20T UdIBIN [ € £T0Ta3Un[ 0t YCOT Yo IeN [ € oz dung o¢
Papus Jeak ayy 10, popus Jatrenb ay} 1o papus Japenb oy} Jo papu? Jajaenb ayy dog sae[naIeg

§1S00 duBUl] L€
(P3)¥)S ISIMIIY)O SSA|UN UOTJ[IW *SY UI SUNOWE [[V)
SJUNO0IIY 0} SIJON
SJUIWIRJE)S [EIDUBUL PIJEPI[OSUO)) PISUIPUO))
€00/0T-61/LITH/NINY
LITY SV SSANISNG ADVISANIIN



EL'E6Y'E vEVLG 8L'069 11°996

€L'60Y°1 oV ELY ELETL yS'LYE a81eyd xe) paridye(
00'780°C ¥6°00¢ SO'LLS LE'819 XB] JU24IN)D
(penpny) (panpneun) (paupreun) (panpneun)
¥20T UoTe 1€ €£20T aunf Og ¥T0T Y2IBIN 1€ ¥T0T dung o¢
papus 1eak 3y} 10 papus Jouenb ay) 10 papus 1a)enb ayy Jog papus aapienb oy ao g sigmnaeJ

asuadxa xe] ¢
(pa3E)s 9sIMIaY10 SSA|UN UOI[JIW *SY UY SHUNOWE [[V)
SJUNO0IDY 03 SIJON
SJUIWDIL)G [BIDUBULY PIIBPI[OSUO)) PISUIPUO))
€00/0T-61/LITU/NI:NY
LITA SAVJ SSANISNI HOVISANIIA



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

40

~

—

Contingent liabilities and Capital commitments

Particulars As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024

Contingent liabilities
Claims not acknowledged as debt in respect of

- Income-Tax matters (Refer note 1 below) excluding interest 963.05 963.05
- Service-Tax matters (Refer note 2 below) 368.25 368.25
- Customs duty matters (Refer note 3 below) 34.09 34.09
- Stamp duty 65.48 65.48
- Stamp duty and registration fees (Refer note 10 below) 221.28 221.28
Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not 8,638.56 9,680.67

provided for (Refer Note 4 below)

Notes:

KRIT - Contingent liability of Rs. 932.50 million relate to AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19 for which it has filed appeals before CIT(A) against orders under section 143(3) /
143(3) read with section 153A of the Act contesting the disallowance of deduction under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961. In case of unfavourable decisions in
appeal for AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19, the tax would be payable under normal tax and hence, MAT credit currently available with KRIT will no longer be available. As a
result, in addition to above contingent liability, KRIT would require to pay additional tax of Rs. 325.57 million w.r.t. AY 2019-20 and AY 2020-21 (These years are not
under litigation) because during these years KRIT has utilised the MAT credit availed during AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19.The disallowance of deduction under section
80IA for AYs 2012-13 to 2018-19 by the Income Tax department was based on the order for earlier AY 2011-12 wherein similar disallowance was made. KRIT had
challenged the said order of AY 2011-12 before the ITAT. The Hon’ble ITAT vide its order dated 06.05.2021 allowed the appeal in favour of KRIT by quashing the
disallowance made by the income-tax authority. The Income Tax department has further filed an appeal before the High Court against the said order for AY 2011-12 of
the Hon’ble ITAT. KRIT has received orders of CIT(A) on 24th July 2024 allowing the claim of 80IA. However, considering the time for any further appeal by the tax
department, the contingent liability is currently disclosed,

Avacado- Contingent liability of Rs. 30.55 million relates to AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17. For AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17, the Company had filed appeals against
order under section 143(3) read with 153A of the Income Tax Act,1961 on account of disallowances w/s 14A and w/s 80IA which were disposed-off in favour of the
Company in earlier year, The department has filed an appeal before the Hon’ble High Court against the same.

SPVs As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024

MBPPL 92.03 92.03
Sundew 2.35 2.35
Intime 57.00 57.00
KRIT 208.80 208.80
Avacado 8.07 8.07

368.25 368.25

MBPPL : The SPV has received show cause and demand notices for inclusion in taxable value amounts received as reimbursement of electricity and allied charges and
demand service tax there on of Rs. 92.03 million excluding applicable interest and penalty. SPV has filled appropriate replies to the show cause and demand notices.

Sundew : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs. 1.87 Million and Demand for Interest and Penalty on account of wrong
availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs.0.48 million . SPV has filed an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending.

Intime : (2) Intime has filed an appeal with CESTAT against demand of Rs. 20.70 million for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the
period April 2010 to March 2015 and Department filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of Commissioner (Appeals) deleting the demand of Rs 15.30 million for
Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period April 2015 to June 2017 and these matters are pending adjudication

(b) Intime received favourable order w.r.t demand of Rs. 21.00 million for service tax on recovery of electricity and water and irregular availment of credit of service tax
paid on input services.

KRIT : The company has filed an appeal with CESTAT against demand of Rs. 96.10 million for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the
period April 2010 to March 2015 and Department filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of Commissioner (Appeals) deleting the demand of Rs. 19.77 million
for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period April 2015 to June 2017 and these matters are pending adjudication.

The company received favourable order w.r.t demand of Rs. 92.93 million for service tax on recovery of electricity and water and irregular availment of credit of service
tax paid on input services.
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Avacado : (a) The SPV has received an order dated 31 January 2018 pronounced by the Commissioner (Appeals), confinning the service tax demand of Rs. 7.14 million
(excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants during the period April 2008 to March 2011. It has filed
an Appeal before the Customs, Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal. The matter is pending adjudication.

(b) For the period April 2011 to September 2011, Avacado had received a Show Cause cum Demand Notice dated 22 October 2012 alleging non-payment of service tax
of Rs. 0.93 million (excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants. Avacado had filed its detailed reply
on 24 December 2012. No further correspondence has been received in this case.

For both the above matters,Avacado had filed applications in Form SVLDRS-1 under the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019. Avacado had
received SVLDRS-3 with service tax demand in respect of above matters, Avacado had not accepted the demand and therefore the matter remains under dispute.

3 Customs duty demand at the time of debonding of assets from the Software Technology Parks of India scheme ( STPI ) for Intime Rs. 15.93 million and KRIT Rs. 9.08
million.
Future Cash outflow in respect of above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgement / decision pending with relevant authorities. KRIT - Bank guarantees to
Deputy Commissioner of Customs, Export Promotion Division for Rs. 9.08 million.
4 The SPV wise details of capital commitments are as follows:
SPVs As at As at
30 June 2024 31 March 2024
MBPPL 515.42 649,98
Gigaplex 602.48 742.94
Sundew 254.66 302.10
KRC Infra 2,046.00 1,970.20
Horizonview 97.82 112.98
KRIT 5,003.43 5,681.13
Avacado 6.15 67.62
Intime 112.60 153.86
8,638.56 9,680.82
5 Avacado
a) A Suit has been filed in the year 2008 by Nusli Neville Wadia (Plaintiff) against lvory Properties and Hotels Private Limited (Ivory) & Others which includes Avacado as
one of the Defendants inter alia in respect of the land and the 'Paradigm’ Industrial Park building of Avacado. The Plaintiff has prayed against Avacado and the said Ivory
restraining them from carrying out further construction or any other activity on the land (on which the building Paradigm is constructed), demolition and removal of the
structures on the said land, appointment of a Court Receiver in respect of the said land and Paradigm building, declaring the MOUs / Agreements entered into by
Avacado with [vory and the Plaintiff as voidable and having been avoided and rescinded by the Plaintiff and to be delivered up and cancelled, restraining from alienating,
encumbering or parting with possession of structures and restraining from dealing with, creating fresh leases / licenses or renewing lease / license in respect of the said
Paradigm building and from receiving or recovering any rent / license fee / compensation in respect of the said leases / licenses, depositing all the rents in the Court, etc
The Court has not granted any ad-interim relief to the Plaintiff. Avacado has filed its reply to the said Suit denying the allegations and praying that no interim relief be
granted to the Plaintiff. The notice of motion for interim relief and the Suit are pending for the final hearing before the High Court
Based on an advice obtained from an independent legal counsel, the management is confident that Avacado will be able to suitably defend and the impact, if any, on the
Ind AS financial statements can be determined on disposal of the above Petition and accordingly, Ind AS Financial statements of Avacado have been prepared on a going
concern basis. Further, the Plaintiff, through his advocates & solicitors, had addressed letter dated 13 February 2020 including to Mindspace REIT, the Manager, the
Trustee, the Sponsors, Avacado, Mr. Ravi C. Raheja, Mr. Neel C. Raheja, Mr. Chandru L. Raheja, Ivory Properties and K Raheja Corp Pvt.Ltd., expressing his objection
to the proposed Offer and any actions concerning the building Paradigm located at Mindspace Malad project. The allegations and averments made by the Plaintiff have
been responded and denied by the addressees, through their advocates & solicitors. No further correspondence has been received.
b) Pursuant to the levy of service tax on renting of immovable properties given for commercial use, retrospectively with effect from 1 June 2007 by the Finance Act, 2010,

some of the lessees to whom Avacado has let out its premises, have based on a legal advice, challenged the said levy and, inter-alia, its retrospective application and
withheld payment of service tax to Avacado, based on certain judicial pronouncements and stay orders granted by appropriate High Courts from time to time. Further in
this regard the Hon’ble Supreme Court has passed an interim order dated 14th October, 2011 in Civil appeal nos. 8390, 8391-8393 of 2011 and in compliance of which,
such lessees have deposited with appropriate authority in 3 instalments, 50% of the amount such service tax not so paid by them upto 30 September 2011 and have
fumished surety for the balance 50% of the amount of service tax and which amount has also been deposited by them with the authorities. Further as per Hon’ble
Supreme Court’s Order dated 5th April 2018 in Civil Appeal No. (s) 4487/2010, the matter is deferred untit disposal of the issues pending before the nine judges Bench in
Mineral Area Development Authority and others.

In view of the above and subject to the final orders being passed by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in the aforesaid appeals, there may be a contingent liability on Avacado in
respect of interest payable on account of the delayed payment of service tax, which amount would be recoverable from the respective lessees by Avacado.
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a)

b)

KRC Infra

In respect of KRC Infra's project at Village Kharadi, Pune, a special civil suit is filed by Ashok Phuichand Bhandari against Balasaheb Laxman Shivale and 29 others in
respect of inter alia an undivided share admeasuring 44.15 Ares out of the land bearing S. No 65 Hissa No. 3 for declaration, specific performance, injunction and other
reliefs. Neither Gera Developments Private Limited nor KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited is a party to the aforementioned suit and neither of them have
been joined as parties to the civil suit or Gera Developments Private Limited nor KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited have filed any intervention application.
There are no orders passed in the matter affecting the suit lands or the development thereof or restraining the transfer or development of the aforesaid land in any manner
whatsoever. Next date is September 24, 2024 for filing list of witnesses by Ashok Phulchnand Bhandari. The matter is currently pending.

Saraswatibai Malhari Gaikwad (deceased) (“Plaintiff”) through her heir Sangita Shivaji Kate through her constituted attorney Mr. Amit Jeevan Pathare has filed special
civil suit no, 2040 of 2021 (*2021 Suit™) against Yashwant Punaji Pathare & 65 others (“Defendants”) before the Civil Judge, Senior Division, Pune (“Court”) seeking
inter alia preliminary decree of partition for 1/5th undivided share of the Plaintiff in the suit fands including inter alia portion of land bearing Survey No. 65/3 on which
Gera Commerzone Kharadi is situated, cancellation of sale deeds, declaration, permanent injunction and several other reliefs. KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private
Limited is not a party to the 2021 Suit and further, no summons from the Court have been received by KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited till date. Gera
Developments Private Limited and Gera Resorts Private Limited i.e. Defendant No. 15 & 16 in the said suit have filed their written statement and an Application for
rejection of plaint on the grounds mentioned therein. The matter is currently pending. Gera Developments Private Limited (“Gera Developments”) and Gera Resorts
Private Limited (“Gera Resorts™), two of the defendants in the matter have filed an application for rejection of plaint under Order VII Rule 11 of Code of Civil Procedure,
which application was rejected by the Court by way of an order passed on May, 05, 2022. Thereafter, on June 22, 2022 Gera Developments and Gera Resorts have filed a
written statement in the matter. On June 22, 2022 the Plaintiff has filed an application under section 151 of Code of Civil Procedure seeking injunction against certain
Defendants from creating third party rights by way of sale, not to carry out construction or development activities. On June 27, 2022, the defendants, Gera Developments
and Gera Resorts filed their reply to the temporary injunction application. An application to recall the order dated May 5, 2022 was filed by defendants 1 to 15. The matter
was heard on July 16, 2022, wherein the Court rejected the application filed by the defendants 1 and 15. On August 29, 2022 KRC Infra filed an application for
intervention as third party for being impleaded in the suit. The hearing was concluded on September 27, 2022 on the intervention application and the matter has been
posted to October 01, 2022 for passing of an order on the Application for intervention filed by KRC Infra. On October 1, 2022 the matter was further adjourned to October
6, 2022 and further to October 7, 2022. On October 7, 2022 additional arguments were advanced on the intervention application and the matter has been posted for order
on the intervention application. By an order dated November 18, 2022, the Court allowed the intervention application filed by KRC Infra and directed the Plaintiff to
implead the intervener i.e. KRC Infra as Defendant No. 66 in the suit within one month of the order. On December 3, 2022 the Plaintiff filed applications for amendment
of the plaint and for injunction. On December 13, 2022, KRC Infra filed its say to the application for amendment. By an order dated December 13, 2022, the Court
allowed the application of the Plaintiff to amend the plaint in Exhibit 5. Further, by the said Order the Court has directed the Plaintiff to serve the amended compilation
upon KRC Infra and KRC Inffa to file its written statement along with its say to the application for temporary injunction filed by the Plaintiff. The matter was posted to
January 5, 2023 for compliance. On January 5, 2023, Defendant no.66 (i.e., KRC Infrastructure and Project Private Limited) has filed on record the written Statement and
say to Application for Temporary Injunction along with affidavit in support of Say, and Application for production of documents along with List of documents. Thereafter,
Defendant no. 1 to 14 filed two applications.

— (1) an Application seeking an adjournment to file Additional Written Statement; and, (2) an Application seeking direction from the Hon’ble Court to the Plaintiff to
provide documents referred to in the amended plaint filed by the Plaintiff, to the said Defendants and the matter was posted to January 11, 2023, for arguments on behalf
of the Plaintiff and the Defendant no.66 on the Application for Temporary Injunction filed at Exhibit 5. On January 11, 2023, the Plaintiff advanced ora! arguments before
the Court on the application for temporary injunction. Thereafter, the Court adjourned the matter and the same was posted to January 24, 2023, for arguments on behalf of
Defendant no.66 on the application for temporary injunction. On January 24, 2023, Defendant No. 66 filed an application for production of documents along with a
separate list of documents and filed photographs on record and the matter was adjourned to February 07, 2023 for arguments on behalf of Defendant no.66 on the
application for temporary injunction. On February 07, 2023 and February 21, 2023 the Defendant No. 66 advanced arguments before the Court on the Application for
injunction. The matter was further posted to March 2, 2023 for concluding the arguments on Application for injunction by the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff concluded her
arguments in reply to the arguments made by Defendant no.66. Defendant No. 66 filed the written notes of arguments. The Plaintiff has filed copy of the Order dated
January 13, 2023, thereby granting status quo to the order dated December 05, 2022, passed in RTS Appeal No. 429 of 2022 rejecting the Appeal on merits till the final
disposal of the Appeal RTS/2/A/1554/2022 filed before the Hon'ble Additional Collector, Pune. Thereafter the captioned matter has been adjourned to March 15, 2023, for
filing of written arguments, if any, by the Plaintiff and other Defendants. On March 15, 2023 the matter was adjourned till March 23, 2023. On March 23, 2023 Defendant
Nos. 62 and 63 filed an application for amendment of the WS filed by them and the Plaintiff has filed its say to the said application. Thereafter, the Plaintiff and the
Defendant Nos. 62 and 63 argued on the aforesaid application and the Hon’ble Court was pleased to allow the aforesaid amendment application. The Defendant Nos. 16,
17, 18, 19, 51, 52 and 53 filed their written notes of arguments and the Defendant No. 16 and 17 have filed their written notes of arguments. The 2021 Suit matter has
been adjourned till July 10, 2023 for passing order on Application for injunction filed by the Plaintiff. On July 19, 2023, the Court partly allowed the Application for
injunction, restraining Defendant 1 and 2 from alienating and creating third party rights in any manner over suit properties 1 (a), 1 (b) and 1 (f) till disposal of the suit. On
September 11, 2023 the Advocate for the Plaintiff filed an application for amendment of the suit, inter alia, seeking (a) rectification of boundaries in respect of suit
property 1(e) of Defendant No. 66 i.e. KRC Infra (viz. Survey No. 65/3), (b) addition/amendment in para No. 8 and 12 stating that Defendant No, 1 to 19, 51 to 54, 63 to
67 and other defendants have refused for partition and undivided share of the Plaintiff, Thereafter, pursuant to Defendants No. 1 to 14 filing their say and matter has been
adjourned to November 3, 2023 for say of other Defendants. Further, A notice of lis pendens dated February 1, 2022 has been registered at the office of Sub Registrar,
Haveli no. 11, Pune. On November 3, 2023, the Plaintiff carried out the amendment and filed the amended plaint, adjourned to November 22, 2023 for filing additional
written statement by Defendant No. 66 and other defendants and appearance by the Defendant No. 67. On November 22, 2023 the matter was adjourned to December 13,
2023. On December 13, 2023 the Defendant No. 66 sought time to file additional written statement and the Plaintiff filed an Application for amendment. Some
Defendants filed additional Written Statements. Plaintiff filed further amendment application. Defendant Nos. 16 , 17 and 66 (KRC Infra) filed say to amendment
application along with application for production of documents. Matter is kept for arguments on amendment application on April 2, 2024. Being aggrieved by the
Impugned Order, (i) the Plaintiff filed Appeal from Order No. 753 of 2023 along with IA No. 5246/2023, and (ii) Respondent Nos. I and 2 filed an Appeal from Order
No. 32 of 2024, both before the High Court. At the request of Respondent Nos. 1 and 2, the court was pleased to tag the appeals together. The appeals are posted for
hearing on May 03.2024. The matter was heard on April 10, 2024 and adjourned tilt June 18, 2024 for taking steps and providing the copies of the Appeal Memo by the
Appellants. The appeals was posted for hearing on 5.7.24 which was adjourned to 10.7.24. On 10.7.24, the court allowed the amended application of Plaintiff. Defendant
No.66 i.e. KRC Infra filed an application for stay. The Court directed Plaintiff to file its say by 23.7.24, till then Plaintiff has been directed not to carry out amendment. The
next date is 30.7.2024. KRC Infra is in the process of challenging the Order dated 10.7,24. The matter is currently pending.
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a)

b)

Saraswati Malhari Gaikwad (deceased) through her heir (“Appellant™) filed an RTS Appeal No. 2/A/1554/2022 on June 6, 2022 before the Additional Collector, Pune
(“Additional Collector”) against Gera Resorts Private Limited through Mr. Ashish Jangda (“Respondents™) seeking to quash and set aside the order passed on December
3, 2022 by the Sub Division Officer, Haveli (“Impugned Order”) in respect of the Mutation Entry No. 27115 On January 13, 2023, pursuant to the hearing, the Additional
Collector granted a stay on the Impugned Order till the final order disposing of the Appeal.On October 16, 2023, the Appellant filed an Amendment Application for
impleading 13 new respondents (“Amendment Application™) and the same was allowed and notices were issued to the newly added Respondents on October 16, 2023,
However, the copies of the aforesaid were not served on KRC Infra and the matter was posted on December 5, 2023 for receipt of records and proceedings of i) Complaint
Case no.6 of 2020 before the Ld. Circle Inspector, Kalas; ii) RTS Appeal No. 429 of 2022 before the Ld. Sub-Divisional Officer. On December 5, 2023 KRC Infra filed its
say to the Amendment Application and the Appellant filed on record the R.P.A.D slips and Track Consignment Report of the said notices as the notices issued to the
proposed Respondents were unserved. Appellant filed an application to issue notices to the proposed Respondents through the Talathi. KRC Infra objected to it and
requested for hearing on the Amendment Application before issuing such notices. The Respondent Nos. 1 and 2 objected to the Amendment Application, filed an
application seeking directions to the Appellant to provide copies of the documents relied by the Appellant in the Amendment Application and to file reply to it. KRC Infra
was directed to conduct the arguments on the Amendment Application and the Respondent Nos.1 and 2 were directed to file their reply to the Amendment Application
The Court noted that no notices will be issued to the proposed Respondents through the Talathi till the said Amendment Application is decided. On February 5, 2024
Respondent No.66 (KRC Infra) filed additional note of written arguments along with list of documents. Respondent 1 and 2 filed application for vacating the Status Quo
Order passed by Additional Collector. The matter has been adjourned till June 12, 2024. On February 05, 2024 Respondent No. 66 filed additional written notes of
arguments. Respondent No. 1 and 2 filed an Application for vacating status quo order passed by the Additional Collector and the matter has been adjourned for filing say
by the Respondent No. 1 and 2 till July 25, 2024.The next date is 2.8.2024.The matter is pending.

MBPPL

Pursuant to the demerger and vesting of the Commerzone Undertaking of K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd. (KRCPL), in MBPPL, MBPPL is the owner to the extent of 88.16 %
undivided right title and interest in the land bearing S. No 144, 145 Yerawada, Pune which is comprised in the said Undertaking, “Shrimant Chhatrapati Udayan Raje
Bhosale (“the Plaintiff”) has filed a Special Civil Suit bearing No.133 of 2009 in the Court of Civil Judge, Senior Division Pune against the erstwhile land Owner Shri
Mukund Bhavan Trust (who had entrusted development rights to MBPPL) and the State of Maharashtra, claiming to be the owner of the said land. The Hon’ble Court was
pleased to reject the Application for amendment of plaint filed by the Plaintiff and allow the Third Party Applications on November,14 2016. The Plaintiff has filed two
writ petitions bearing Nos. 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 in the Bombay High Court challenging the aforesaid orders passed on November 14, 2016. The matter was
transferred to another Court for administrative reasons and adjourned on several occasions for compliance of the order by the Plaintiff. On 5th March 2018 the Advocate
for the Plaintiff filed a purshis on record stating that since he does not have any instructions in the matter from the Plaintiff, the Vakalatnama is being withdrawn by him
and the matter was posted on 20th March 2018. On 20th March 2018 the Hon’ble Court was pleased to adjourn the matter till 22nd June 2018 since the Advocate for the
Plaintiff had withdrawn the Vakalatnama and the Plaintiff was not represented by any Advocate. Writ Petition Nos. 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 filed in the Hon’ble
Bombay High Court challenging the orders dated 14th November 2016 by Shrimant Chatrapati Udayanraje Bhosale against Shri. Mukund Bhavan Trust and others came
up for hearing on 28 November 2017 wherein the Advocate for the Petitioner undertook to serve the copy of the petition on the Respondent No. 2 i.e. State of Maharashtra
and the Hon’ble High Court was pleased to adjourn the same till 16.01.2018, 26.02.2018, 22.06.2018. On 22.06.2018 the Advocate for the Defendant No. 1 filed a purshis
stating that the Defendant No. 1 (a) expired matter was further adjourned till 24.10.18, 26.11.18, 21.12.18, 01.02.2019, 25.03.2019 and 15.04.2019, 18.06.2019,
27.08.2019, 19.09.2019. On 19.09.2019 the matter has been stayed by the Hon’ble Court and further posted on 11.11.2019 for compliance of the order dated 14.11.2016
by the Plaintiff. The matter has been stayed under Sec 10 of Code of Civil Procedure. Next date 16.09.23 for steps. Both the Writ Petitions were posted on 21.09.18,
11.10.18, 22.10.18 and further posted on 10.06.19 for Admission. The matters came on board on 20,06.2019, 14.11.2019, 15.01.2019 and 21.02.2019. As per the CMIS
Writ Petition No. 4415/2017 was last posted on 27.03.2020 and is yet not listed. As per the CMIS Writ Petition No. 4268/2017 was last posted on 27.03.2020 and
thereafter on 23.07.20 for Admission and is yet not listed. In the management’s view, as per legal advice, considering the matter and the facts, no provision for any loss /
liability is presently required to be made.

MBPPL received a communication (alleged reminder) from Pune Municipal Corporation (PMC) demanding an amount of Rs.157 million allegedly due from MBPPL
based on objections by interna! audit report of Pune Municipal Corporation. MBPPL, has submitted a letter denying all allegation of PMC, as MBPPL has not been served
with any document referred to the said PMC letter. Subsequently MBPPL addressed one more communication stating that MBPPL would be in a position to submit their
reply upon receipt of the details of amount demanded as per their reply submitted which states that if any principal outstanding is due/recoverable, MBPPL agrees to make
the said payment and sought detailed clarification on the interest amount. By letter dated 20.07.2019 to MBPPL, PMC provided the copy of the audit report to MBPPL and
requested MBPPL to provide its clarifications in respect of objectionable issues and fumnish the chailans in lieu of payment of the recoverable amount. By letter dated
17.08.2021 to the architect firm and another, PMC stated that it has not received any clarifications and provided the challans of amounts by assessing interest thereon and
required submission of challan/receipt towards payment of an amount of  183.60 million recoverable against all objectionable issues. By its reply letter dated 06.09.2021
to PMC, MBPPL has again reiterated that the earlier PMC letter dated 04.02.2019 and the PMC letter dated 17.08.2021 are addressed to the wrong persons and informed
PMC of the non-receipt of relevant information and documents from PMC as requested by MBPPL earlier. By letter dated 11.10.2021 to PMC, MBPPL replied stating
that the impugned challans, demands and notice are illegal, null and void and ultra vires; and likewise the act of issuing the letter dated 17.08.2021 is ultra vires and
without the authority of law and called upon PMC to withdraw the impugned challans and letter forthwith. By the said letter MBPPL further stated that if the challans and
letter is not withdrawn and any further action is initiated in that event the letter dated 11.10.2021 may be treated as a notice under section 487 of The Maharashtra
Municipal Corporations Act, 1949 and under section 159 of The Maharashtra Regional and Town Planning Act, 1966. Further, without prejudice to the contentions raised
in the reply and without admitting any liability to pay the amount as per the impugned challans, MBPPL has submitted that, in order to resolve the controversy, MBPPL is
willing to offer to pay in full and final settlement on all accounts of all demands raised in the said challans, a lumpsum one-time amount of T 26.64 million without any
liability for interest thereon or for any other payments relating to the subject and to provide an opportunity of hearing and furnishing clarifications, if required by PMC.
Subsequently, by letter dated March 10, 2022, PMC informed MBPPL that it has not accepted the cheque issued by MBPPL vide its letter dated January 25, 2022 and
requested MBPPL to issue demand draft for the amount as per the Challans and make the payment to PMC at the earliest

On April 7, 2022 MBPPL submitted a reply/ letter to PMC enclosing a demand draft as desired by the PMC, for an amount of Z 26.64 million towards the payment as set
out in MBPPL's earlier communications. Vide letter dated July 11, 2022 PMC retumned MBPPL’s demand draft while demanding entire demanded payment. MBPPL
vide its letter dated July 22, 2022 read with MBPPL letter dated July 21, 2022 remitted the entire demanded payment of Rs.10,13,57,239/- under protest. MBPPL on July
28, 2022 aiso paid an amount of Rs.60,93,225/- being Challan Late Fees and recorded this payment under MBPPL letter dated August 8, 2022, MBPPL (“Petitioner”) has
filed writ petition on November 14, 2022 in the Bombay High Court (“Court”) against Pune Municipal Corporation and others (“Respondents™) inter alia, seeking to
impugn and set aside the Demand Notice dated January 5, 2022 enclosing challans for certain amounts allegedly due and payable by the Petitioner (“Impugned Demand
Notice™) and for refund of the amout F_'—KHIJU}’AS million paid by the Petitioner under protest to the Rg towards the Impugned Demand Notice. The matter is
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a)

b)

a)

b)

Intime, Sundew and KRIT

In accordance with the Scheme of arrangement which was approved by Hon’ble Andhra Pradesh High Court on 23 March 2007, the Industrial Park Il and III undertakings
of K.Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited (formerly known as K Raheja 1T Park (Hyderabad) Private Limited) ("KRIT", "JV Company") have been demerged and vested
in the Company with effect from the appointed date i.e. 01 September 2006.

Intime and Sundew had acquired the land at Madhapur, Hyderabad as part of the demerger scheme from KRIT. The said land is in lieu of the employment opportunities to
be generated by KRIT and others.

The liability, if any, arising due to the obligation to create the job opportunities for the entire larger land of which the above property is a part, continues to be retained by
KRIT as at 31 March 2024,

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("TSIIC") has returned the original Bank Guarantees to KRIT and
also confirmed to the bank that TSIIC will not claim any amount from the bank under the Bank Guarantees and the bank is relieved of its obligation. Hence, no liability is
recognised towards the price of the plot of land

An unconditional obligation to pay amounts due to Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("APIIC") in respect of APIIC's claims of losses due to
any difference in values pertaining to sale transactions of the project undertaken by KRIT. Losses incurred by the Government/TSIIC in its JV Company, if any, will be
paid in full by K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd and it has furnished to the JV Company in writing agreeing and admitting liability to make such payment to Government/TSIIC.

The shareholding pattern of the Government/TSIIC in the IV Company and the Company will not change as a result of conversion from Private to Public, the Government
/ TSIIC equity of 11% will remain the same in the Company and all the demerged companies and further in future, Government / TSIIC will not be asked to infuse further
cash to maintain its 11% stake

Gigaplex

Regular Civil Suit had been filed before the Hon. Civil Judge (J.D) Vashi at Central Business District by an Education Society (“the Plaintiff") who is claiming rights in
existing school structure, claiming its area as 500 square meters and its existence since more than 30 years, seeking an injunction not to dispossess him. Gigaplex has filed
its reply opposing the Plaintiff’s prayers. After hearing the parties, the Hon’ble Judge at the Vashi Court had rejected the Plaintiff’s Injunction Application by Order dated
20.08.18 (Order). Thereafter the Plaintiff has filed an appeal in Thane District Court. The Plaintiff’s Appeal filed in Thane District Court has been transferred to Belapur
Court is still pending for Arguments in Appellant's Applications for injunction and status quo before relevant court in Belapur. Both Suit and Appeal are pending for
hearing. In management view, the estimate of liability arising out of the same is remote, no provision has been taken,

Gigaplex, one of the SPV’s of Mindspace REIT, has received notice dated 11th December 2023 (“Demand Notice™) issued by MIDC demanding differential premium of
Rs. 528 million on account of change in shareholding pattemn i.e. participation of the Company into the Mindspace REIT. In the meantime, in view of the permission for
subleasing required by the Company from MIDC in respect of proposed transactions by the Company, and pending the determination as to whether the said demand is
payable at all to MIDC and whether payable by the Company, the Company has obtained a bank guarantee in favour of MIDC for the said demand in order that the said
permission for subleasing is obtained by the Company from MIDC. Management is of the view that the said demand is not payable by the Company. The Company had
sent intimation to MIDC of the participation by the Company into Mindspace REIT (“Transaction™) on 15th July 2020 (i.e. pre-Transaction) and also on 5th October 2020
(i.e. post-Transaction) and also explained in detail the rationale why the Transaction ought to be treated as a ‘Formal Transfer” under the circulars issued by MIDC and
only a standard transfer fee is payable which will be a nominal amount only and not such a large amount as per the Demand Notice. The Company has sent its response to
the Demand Notice on 2nd January 2024 and once again reiterated its aforesaid position and thus the demand for differential premium is erroneous and unwarranted and
has requested MIDC, inter alia, to withdraw/revoke the Demand Notice. In this regard, the Company has been legally advised that under the MIDC Circulars issued with
respect to the change in shareholding of any lessee company of MIDC, which Circulars are also referred to in the REIT Circular issued by MIDC, as long as the natural
persons belonging to the same family holding directly or indirectly in the lessee company by reckoning the shareholding within the shareholding entity does not fall below
51% post transfer of shares of the Jessee company as compared to the position prior to the transfer of shares, the transfer premium payable will be a nominal sum being
treated as a Formal Transfer under the MIDC Circulars. In pursuance of REIT acquiring entire shareholding of a Company, the position with respect to satisfying the said
51% holding is fully satisfied and the Company has furnished substantial evidence and documents in support of the same to MIDC. Therefore, in Company’s view there is
no such premium payable as demanded by MIDC except 2 nominal transfer premium as a Formal Transfer for which the Company has made provision of Rs. 6 million in
the books of account. Considering pendency in the disposal of this matter, in management’s view, no further provision is presently required to be made.

The said Transaction is in pursuance of swap of shares of the Company by, inter alia, the Sponsor Group i.e. K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd. and Ivory Property Trust
(collectively, “Erstwhile Shareholders™) in exchange for the units of the Mindspace Business Park REIT. The Erstwhile Shareholders have provided an indemnity and also
agreed to make good the differential premium or any other amount which is finally decided by MIDC in this respect by way of a Counter Guarantee dated 7th June 2024 in
favour of the Company for such demand liability, if any, and any expenditure as may be incurred by the Company for obtaining the bank guarantee or any security in
respect of the bank guarantee and any other cost, whether direct or indirect, as may be incurred by the Company in relation thereto

Horizonview

RPIL has executed a Deed of Conveyance dated 19th August, 2023, in favour of Horizonview for transfer of 78% undivided interest in the Land, which has been
submitted for registration with the concerned Sub-Registrar of Assurances, Kundrathur, Chennai. Further, RPIL has also executed a Deed of Conveyance dated 2nd
September, 2023 in favour of Horizonview for transfer of its units in the building along with the corresponding 22% undivided interest in the Land. Both documents have
been submitted for registration with the Sub-Registrar of Assurances Kundrathur (“Registrar”). The Registrar has issued demand notices for deficit of stamp duty and
registration fees aggregating to ¥ 221.28 million in respect of the conveyance deeds and most of the demand is with respect to the Registrar’s view that there is transfer of
the building besides transfer of Land under the first Conveyance. Horizonview has responded to the demand notices, objecting to the same as Horizonview has constructed
the building together with plant and machinery in the building for itself, on its own account and therefore there is no transfer from RPIL. As the transaction, which is
subject matter of deed of conveyance, is only for transfer of the 78% undivided right, title and interest in the land and not the building/ machinery, in view of Management,
the demand is not tenable. Further, regarding the 22% conveyance, the demand has been made for stamp duty and registration fees on the TDS amount deducted which
demand is not tenable since the stamp duty and registration charges have been paid on the entire consideration which includes the TDS amount under the conveyance
deed. The Company has the right to appeal to a higher authority. Considering pendency in the disposal of this matter, in management’s view, no further provision is
presently required to be made.
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Sundew

The Office of the Land Reforms Tribunal Cum Deputy Collector & Special Grade Revenue Divisional Officer, Attapur (“Tribunal™) had, by letter dated 27 August 2009,
sought information from Sundew under Section 8(2) of the Andhra Pradesh Land Reforms (Ceiling on Agriculture Holdings) Act, 1973 (“APLRAC”) in respect of the
entire land parcel at Mindspace Madhapur. The Revenue Department of the Government of Andhra Pradesh forwarded a Memo dated 5 September 2009 for furnishing of
certain information to the Government of Andhra Pradesh, including information requested by the letter dated 27 August 2009. Sundew had filed a detailed response on 30
September 2009 stating that (a) the land was originally granted by the Government of Andhra Pradesh to K Raheja IT Park Hyderabad Limited (KRIT) which was a joint
venture company with Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited, (b) the land was vested in Sundew by way of demerger order of the Andhra Pradesh
High Court, (c) the land has been declared as an SEZ and is therefore exempt from the local laws; (d) the land was shown as a non-agricultural land in the master plan of
Hyderabad and is therefore not “land” covered under the APLRAC. The Tribunal issued a final notice to Sundew in January 2012 requesting to submit a declaration for
full and correct particulars of the lands held. In September 2009, Sundew also submitted a copy of the order dated August 9, 2012, which was passed by the Hon’ble High
Court of Andhra Pradesh (“High Court”) in a similar matter (being Writ Petition No. 19300/2012 filed by Neogen Properties Pvt. Ltd.) wherein a stay was granted by the
High Court until further orders. The matter is currently pending before the Tribunal, Future cash flows in respect of above matters are determinable only on receipt of
judgements/decisions pending at various forums/authorities

41 Management and Support fees

A Management Fees*

Property Management Fee

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 3% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park
charges or any other compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the relevant property in respect to operations, maintenance and management of the SPVs, as
applicable to be reduced to the extent of employee cost directly incurred by the SPVs, The fees is charged based on the billing done to the tenants. The fees has been
determined to meet the ongoing costs of the Investment Manager to undertake the services provided to the SPVs.

Property Management fees for the quarter ended 30 June 2024 amounts to Rs.116.90 million and for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024 amounts to Rs 119.57
million and Rs. 439.37 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager.

Support Services Fee

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 0.5% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park
charges or any other compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the relevant property in respect to general administration and other support service of the SPVs,
as applicable. The fees has been determined to meet the ongoing costs of the Investment Manager to undertake the services provided to the SPVs. The fees is charged
based on the billing done to the tenants.

Support Management fees for the quarter ended 30 June 2024 amounts to Rs 24.01 million and for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024 amounts to Rs. 24.95
million and Rs. 91.46 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager.

REIT Management Fees

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 21 November 2019, Investment Manager is entitled to fees @ 0.5% of REIT Net Distributable Cash Flows
which shall be payable either in cash or in Units or a combination of both, at the discretion of the Investment Manager. The fees has been determined for undertaking
management of the REIT and its investments.

The REIT Management fees (including GST) accrued for the quarter ended 30 June 2024 amounts to Rs 17.66 million and for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2024
amounts to Rs. 16.83 million and Rs. 67.51 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the
Investment Manager.

*Refer Note-46 for related party disclosure
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43 Financial instruments
A The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as

As at As at
Financial assets 30 June2024 31 March 2024
Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘'FVTOCI")
Investments in equity instruments 0.02 0.02
Amortised cost
Investments - non-current 38.26 33.02
Trade receivables 1,248.37 1,092.30
Cash and cash equivalents 5,382.81 3,250.36
Other bank balances 1,074.85 2,850.48
Other financial assets 8,067.60 6,906.57
Total assets 15,811.91 14,132.75
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 75,073.78 69,728.11
Lease Liabilities 131.12 128.00
Security deposits 9,450.36 9,125.98
Trade payables 1,188.52 1,087.56
Other financial liabilities (other than Security deposits) 2,603.19 3,640.53
Total liabilities 88,446.98 83,710.18

The Management considers that the carrying amount of the above financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair

B. Measurement of fair values
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:

a) recognised and measured at fair value
b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three
levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below:

Fair value hierarchy
« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as at 30 June 2024.

Financial instruments
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2024:

Particulars Date of valuation Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at fair value:
FVTOCI financial investments: 6/30/2024 0.02 - - 0.02
FVTOCI financial investments: 3/31/2024 0.02 - - 0.02

C Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the period ended 30 June 2024 and year ended 31 March 2024.

D Determination of fair values
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date.
ii) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered-to be equivalent to their carrying values.

iii) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be cquwalem 10 present valuz. of the future Copliacis cashflows discounted at the current
market rate. ; y
iv) Security deposits accepted are measured at fair value based on the dtﬁiquqnud icashi ﬂdw method cong/if

borrowing rate.

ate determined as the average




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts jn Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

44

Segment information
Primary segment information

The primary teportable segment is business segment.

Business Segment

The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - 'real estate' and ‘power distribution’, which are determined based on the internal organisation and management structure of
the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its retuns. The Board of Directors of the manager has been identified as the chief operating
decision maker (CODM). CODM evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based or analysis of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed below.

Real estate

Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other commercial assets ,The Group has its
project/properties in Mumbai Region, Hyderabad, Pune and Chennai for development and management of commercial SEZ, 1T parks and commercial assets including incidental activities.

Power distribution

The state power regulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infra as Deemed Distribution Licensee for Power. The approved SPVs being Deemed

Distributor, supplies power to customers within the notified SEZ.

Sundew has a power distribution system for supplying electricity to its consumers in its SEZ project at Mindspace Cyberabad, Madhapur, Hyderabad

Sundew has filed a Civil appeal on 15 November 2019 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India for obtaining the Deemned distribution licensee status in terms of Ministry of Commerce and
Industry Notification dated 3 March 2010 and Sec 14(b) of the Electricity Act, 2003 to operate and maintain a power distribution system for supplying electricity to its consumers in its SEZ
project at Mindspace Cyberabad, Madhapur, Hyderabad. The matter is disposed off vide Judgement dated 17.5.2024 by Hon'ble Supreme Court allowing the Civil Appeal allowing Sundew to
operate and maintain a power distribution license for supplying electricity to its consurners,

For the quarter ended 30 June 2024

Real estate Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars elimination
Segment revenue 6,029.22 393.20 - (144.97) 6,277.45
Sepgment result 3,621.05 2.27 (152.06) - 3,471.26
Less: Finance cost 97.01 0.04 1,165.93 = 1,262.99
Add: Interest income / other income 6.16 0.70 128.04 - 134.89
Profit/ (loss) before tax 3,530.19 2.92 (1,189.95) - 2,343.16
Less: Tax - - 966.11 - 966.11
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3.530.19 2.92 (2,156.06) - 1,377.05
For the quarter ended 31 March 2024

Real estate Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars elimination
Segiment revenue 5,910.97 271.28 - (82.25) 6,100.00
Segment result 3,586.22 (2.22) (209.49) & 3,374.51
Less: Finance cost 97.15 3.69 1,090.49 - 1,191.33
Add: Interest income / other income 3238 0.49 109.49 - 142.36
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 3,521.45 (5.42) (1,191.49) = 2,325.54
Less: Exceptional Items (refer note 50) (364.23) E - - (364.23)
Profit / (loss) before tax 3,157.22 (5.42) (1,191.49) - 1,961.31
Less: Tax - - 690.78 - 690.78
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,157.22 (5.42) (1,882.27) = 1.270.53
For the quarter ended 30 June 2023

Real estate Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars elimination
Segment revenue 5,700.64 303.03 - (105.82) 5,897.85
Segment result 3,424.04 5.02 (139.07) - 3,289.99
Less: Finance cost 78.85 - 986.95 = 1,065.80
Add: Interest income / other income 7195 - 47.10 H 119.05
Profit / (loss) before tax 3,417.14 5.02 (1,078.92) - 2,343.24
Tax - - 974.00 = 974.00
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,417.14 5.02 (2,052.92) - 1.369.24
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Real estate Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars elimination
Segment revenue 23,527.97 1,156.90 - (392.87) 24 292.00
Segment result 14,180.22 17.78 (639.00) - 13,559.00
Less: Finance cost 402.85 4.10 4,159.02 - 4.565.97
Add: Interest income / other income 132.00 2.01 343.00 - 477.01
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 13,909.37 15.69 (4,455.02) - 9,470.04
Less: Exceptional Items (refer note 50) (363.93) - - - (363.93)
Profit / (loss) before tax 13,545.44 15.69 (4,455.02) - 9,106.11
Tax - - 3,493.73 - 3,493.73
Profit / (Loss) after tax 13,545.44 15.69 (7,948.75) - 5,612.38
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For the quarter ended 30 June 2024
Other Information

Real estate Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars elimination
Segment assets 229,395.94 1,750.53 11,262.00 - 242,408 47
Segment liabilities 13,031.32 1,420.10 80,121.00 - 94,572.42
Capital expenditure 2,955.68 35.37 - - 2,991.05
Depreciation & amortisation 945.98 23.20 - = 969.18
For the year ended 31 March 2024
Other Information

Real estate Power distribution Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars elimination
Segment assets 227,343.55 1,853.42 9,249 .44 - 238,446.41
Segment liabilities 12,529.52 1,490.91 75,140.15 - 89,160.58
Capital expenditure 10,660.88 10.34 - - 10,671.22
Depreciation & amortisation 3.736.32 90.68 - - 3.827.00

Secondary segment information

Mindspace Group's operations are based in India and therefore the Group has only one geographical segment - India,

Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of the Mindspace Group. In addition, the following specific accounting policies have been followed for segment reporting:

Segment revenue includes income directly attributable to the segment.

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under respective reportable segment.

Revenue and expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable’.

Borrowings and finance cost of the Group which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under "Unallocable’.
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

46 Related party disclosures

A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 30 June 2024

SI. |Particulars Name of Entities Promoters/Partners* Directors
Ms. Deepa Rath
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya ceased w.e.f.
January 15,2024
Mr. Ganesh Sankaran
1 Trustee Axis Trustee Services Limited Axis Bank Limited** ceased w.e.f. January 15, 2024
Mr. Sumit Bali w.e.f. January 16, 2024
M. Prashant Joshi w.e.f, January 16, 2024
Mr. Pramod Nagpal w.e.f May 03, 2024
Mr. Arun Mehta w.e.f May 03, 2024
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja w.e.f. July 7, 2023
Mr. Neel C. Raheja w.e.f. July 7, 2023
Mr. Deepak Ghaisas w.e.f. July 11, 2023
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Mr. Bobby Parikh w.e.f. July 11, 2023
2 Manager (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers |Mr. Neel C. Raheja Ms. Manisha Girotra w.e.f. July 11, 2023
LLP) *#* Mr. Manish Kejriwal w.e f. July 11,2023
Mr. Vinod Rohira
w.e.f. September 1, 2023
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
3 Anbee Constructions LLP Mr. Chanfiru L. Rgheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Ms. Sumati Raheja
Sponsors =
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
) Mr. Neel C. Raheja
4 Cape Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja _
= Mr. Chandru L. Raheja - -
| 6 | Mr. Ravi C. Raheja - =
| 7| Mr. Neel C. Raheja - -
| 81 Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja -
19| Ms. Sumati Raheja - -
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
] Mr. Neel C. Raheja
10 Capstan Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
| Mr. Ravi C, Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
11 Sponsors Group Casa Maria Properties LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja _
] Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
12 Raghukool Estate Developement LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
| Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
13 Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja R




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

46 Related party disclosures
A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 30 June 2024

Sl. [Particulars Name of Entities Promoters/Partners*® Directors
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with Ravi C. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Neel C. Raheja
14 Sponsors Group K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd. Ramesh Valecha
Anbee Constructions LLP Ramesh Ranganthan
Cape Trading LLP Sunil Hingorani
Capstan Trading LLP
Casa Maria Properties LLP
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Ramesh M, Valecha
Chandru L. Raheja
Jyoti C. Raheja
Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd
15 Ivory Property Trust Ravi C. Raheja
Neel C. Raheja
(all are trustees) _
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with Ravi C. Raheja
Sponsors Group Mr. Chan.dru L. Ra.heja Jointly with Neel C. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
16 Genext Hardware & Parks Pvt. Ltd, Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Chandru L. Raheja jointly with Jyoti C. Raheja,
on behalf of the beneficiaries of Ivory Property
Trust.




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

46 Related party disclosures
A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 30 June 2024

Sl. [Particulars Name of Entities Promoters/Partners* Directors

Board of directors/Governing Board

Mr. Deepak Ghaisas (Independent Member)

Ms. Manisha Girotra (Independent Member)

Mr. Bobby Parikh (Independent Member)

Mr. Manish Kejriwal (Independent Member)

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja (Non Executive Non Independent
Board of] Member)

Directors/Governing  Board|nf Nee] C. Raheja (Non Executive Non Independent
and Key Managerial Member)

17]Personnel of the Manager|nse vinod Rohira (Non Executive Non Independent

(K Raheja Corp Investment|psemper) we f September I,2023
Managers Private

Limited)*** Kev Managerial Personnel

Mr. Ramesh Nair (Chief Executive Officer) w.ef
September 1, 2023

Mr. Vinod Rohira (Chief Executive Officer) till August
31,2023

Ms. Preeti Chheda (Chief Financial Officer)

Brookfields Agro & Development Private Limited
Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited

. . Immense Properties Private Limited
Entities controlled/jointly  |Novel Properties Private Limited

controlled by Board of Pact Real Estate Private Limited
1g|Directors/Members of Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Private Limited

Governing Board/Key Aqualine Real E Pri Limited

Managerial Personnel of the quaiine Jsea state Privale .lmlICA .

manager K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private Limited (Formerly

known as "Feat Properties Private Limited") (till 8th
August 2023)

Carin Properties Private Limited

Asterope Properties Private Limited

Content Properties Private Limited

Madhurawada Holdings Private Limited (w.e.f. April 3,
2024)

Gencoval Strategic Services Private Limited
Stemade Biotech Private Limited

Hariom Infrafacilities Services Private Limited

K. Raheja Corp Advisory Services (Cyprus) Private
Limited

Convex Properties Private Limited

M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates

Close Member (Relatives) of
Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the
Manager

Meera Rohira (Wife of Mr. Vinod Rohira)

* only when acting collectively

** Axis Bank Limited, being a promoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited (“Trustee™), trustee to Mindspace Business Parks REIT, also a Debenture Trustee regulated by SEBI, is
considered as a related party of Mindspace REIT in line with the SEBI REIT Regulations based on directions from SEBI dated 12 June 2023.

*#% K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (Manager) was converted into a private company as per Rule 5 of Companies (Authorised to Register) Rules 2014. Since the Manager had
received approval for the conversion effective July 07, 2023, The Manager, therefore, stands converted into a private company i.e., K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
effective July 07,2023
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RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
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C.

Related party disclosures

Balances as at the year end

Particulars As at As at

30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Other Receivable/ Advance to vendors
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K 11.70 10.46
Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
Capital Advances
Genext Hardware & Parks 0.13 -
Pvt. Ltd.
Trade Payables
Meera Rohira - 0.00
M/s Bobby Parikh and Associates 0.07 0.15
Axis Bank Limited 0.51 0.63
Axis Trustee Services Limited 2.16 =
Sitting Fees Payable
Neel C.Raheja 0.04 0.07
Ravi C.Raheja 0.04 0.04
Preeti Chheda - 0.05
Ramesh Nair - 0.05
Vinod N Rohira 0.11 0.12
Other Financial Liabilities
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K 22.59 17.49
Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
Genext Hardware & Parks Pvt. Ltd. - 7.66
Security Deposit
Axis Bank Limited 76.52 76.52
Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus
Anbee Constructions LLP 0.01 0.01
Cape Trading LLP 0.01 0.01
Bank Balance (Including Escrow and Dividend Account)
Axis Bank Limited 3,698.38 3,367.80
Overdraft Balance
Axis Bank Limited 950.72 534.29
Fixed Deposit Balance
Axis Bank Limited 908.11 160.28
Interest Receivable on Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limited 5.14 2.85
Term Loan
Axis Bank Limited 3,478.06 2,596.69
Trade Receivable
Axis Bank Limited 13.67 21.96
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K - 22.71
Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
Non-Fund Based Facilities
Axis Bank Limited 879.87 701.20
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The figures for the quarter ended 31 March 2024 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024
and the published year-to-date figures upto period ended 31 December 2023, respectively which were subjected to limited review.

Intime had received show cause notice during the previous year from the Jurisdictional GST Authority for the periods beginning July 2017 to March
2020 for not considering charging of GST, on the recovery of utilities being electricity, water and DG back-up power provided to tenants,
amounting to Rs. 100.22 million. The Management, after due consultation with the Consultant, is of the view that the charges towards electricity
and DG back-up power are incurred in the capacity of a ‘pure agent’ as covered under Rule 33 of CGST Rules, 2017 and also such supplies are
exempt as per the Exemption Notification and hence to be excluded from the value of taxable supply. The Management had filed its detailed
response to the show cause notice. Based on the facts of the case and the provisions of the GST law, no provision has been made w.r.t. recovery of
electricity and DG back-up power.

Considering the weak micro market dynamics and no immediate demand visibility and also this being a non-core asset, the Board of Directors of
the Manager, at its meeting held on January 29, 2024 approved initiation of the process of sale of Mindspace Pocharam, comprising all piece and
parcel of land admeasuring approximately 26 acres along with the structures thereon located at Mindspace Pocharam, Telangana. This investment
property is part of “Real Estate” segment of the Group. An active program for sale will be in place. On conclusion of the process, a detailed
proposal shall be placed before the Board for its consideration and approval. The asset, which is expected to be sold within 12 months, has been
classified as a held for sale and presented separately in the balance sheet. The Group has estimated the fair value less costs of disposal of this asset
based on the external fair valuation, which is less than the carrying value as on March 31, 2024. Accordingly, the asset was recognised at the lower
of carrying value and fair value less cost of disposal resulting into impairment loss of Rs 363.93 million, which was recognised in the statement of
profit and loss and considered the same as an Exceptional Item for the year ended March 31, 2024

Assets classified as held for sale are as follows

Assct class As at As at

30 June 2024 31 March 2024
Investment property 1371.51 1,371.51
Property, plant and equipment 3.55 3.55
Investment property under construction 442.19 445.08
Deposits 8.78 8.78

- Less - Impairment (363.93) (363.93)

Total 1,462.10 1,464.99

The group during the current quarter decided to disclose the amounts rounded off to Millions with 2 decimals, correspondingly the amounts
pertaining to previous quarters and year have been shown in 2 decimal."0.00" represents value less than Rs. 0.005 million.




